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Corporate Profile
vl R

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises, Guotai
Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the Company”
or “the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and investors in
China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to access intemational
capital markets while at the same time enable international investors to gain access to the

dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

We are a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”), one
of the China's largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai International
Group Company Limited. Backed by the strong operational support, we are the
designated international flagship company of Guotai Junan, serving as the gateway for

international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan Intemational enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities and
is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We have
unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder's extensive business networks, not just

in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house with
China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") approval to list its shares through
initial public offering (“IPO") on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange"). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we provide our services
in 5 core business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities, futures and leveraged foreign
exchange, (i) corporate finance, (iii) asset management, (iv) fixed income and (v) loans
and financing. By means of a sophisticated intemet platform, we are able to provide our
clients with comprehensive services on global securities, derivative and leveraged foreign
exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes, market news and
research reports, etc. Our team of dedicated professionals, who have in-depth knowledge
and understanding of both China and Hong Kong capital markets, has established a solid
reputation for providing a wide range of high quality corporate finance solutions to our

clients in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial services
through some of the most turbulent economic periods in history. Looking into the future,
we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and customer profiles,
and become a major regional financial services conglomerate. We will commit ourselves
to assist our clients in making proper judgments in different market conditions while

upholding our service commitment with integrity, client focus, expertise and innovation.
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Milestones

LR

1995 Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated. —ANA%E ZRER(BE)BRRAEM
XL
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the Stock RERBH(BER)ERAA
Exchange and commenced business. FX A2 PR B R R RS
1997 Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business. —hAhtE ZERHME(ER)ERAR
ElES R
2001 Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched. “TT-F FEEFNELRSTAREL -
2003 Online trading platform for futures business was launched. —TT=F  HEEBNBLRSTAEL
2004 Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the first pilot “TTEME  REREERNIBERZMAR

company whose A Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. MBS AR TR REIE
REBBERDREERE -

2007 Our first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai Junan ZETEE EMMEERARESRER
Greater China Growth Fund was launched. ¢ BREREREES -BHE

BRARPEERESHDL -

2008 Completed sponsorship and IPO fund raising in Hong Kong for the fist ~ —ZZN\FE  AHBEERIBEARZMAR
pilot company whose A and B Shares were listed on the Shenzhen Stock FBA% = 6 A B A R AR
Exchange. BIEREEBERARAEE

&8
2009 Online trading platform for United States securities was launched. “TTNF EEIFNELRSTAREL -
CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained. BETREEgETEBK

XHEMR

2010 CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing was obtained. —T-FF  DEPEEEgREETE LW -
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed on HRELEAFZERER AR T
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Az I R B AR P E AR T o
Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange trading BZRELZIINEFRARIFIGIRE
service. HER A INER 5 R -
2011 Level | American Depository Receipt program was launched. —T——% HMERA-REBAERES
R -

0145 BREREBRERERAT 5



Milestones

LEEvEy L

2012 We launched our first RQFIl fund: Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Funds — “T-ZF EMELEERQAIES : BXR
Guotai Junan Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund. ERERARBES -BEXRE

ZEETEETREES

Completed conversion of the B share into H share and the listing of H share AR—FXPEMPETKBREH

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of a Chinese enterprise. R H R ER 7 e
2013 We launched our first public fund in Luxembourg: White Fleet — Guotai —T-=F HRMRLEEEEREBETH

Junan Sunrise Emerging Market Fixed Income Total Retum Fund. NEES : White Fleet - Guotai

Junan Sunrise Emerging Market

Fixed Income Total Return

Fund °
2014 Completed the issuance of offshore US-denominated corporate bonds for ~ ZE—MF AR REEHZEELHNEIINEE
offshore investment for our parent company Guotai Junan. TERBTEIETIHELRER
% o
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Financial Highlights
UL RS

For the year ended

3| December

BEZ+=-A=+-H
LFE
2014 2013 Change
—E-QNE —T—=F #

HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TER TAET Bt

Fee and commission income WE kAL WA
— dealing and broking —BERELR 521,556 377,057 38.3%
— corporate finance —-hERE 200,938 123,980 62.1%
— asset management - BEER 46,387 31,568 46.9%
Income from fixed income business &€ Wi E A 123,269 68,593 79.7%
Income from loans and financing ERRBBRA 702,560 397924 76.6%
Gain from investment holding REFBRE 61,872 134,834 -54.1%
Revenue Wegs 1,656,582 1,133,956 46.1%
Other income Hi A 4,459 5412 -17.6%
Revenue and other income W R E MU A 1,661,041 1,139,368 45.8%
Profit for the year FREN 801,915 537,758 49.1%
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AN AIIR i H A FE(h & F 799,791 536,398 49.1%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERBMGEL) 41.7 311 34.1%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERN GBI 41.1 309 33.0%
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS (AL) 21 16 31.3%
Net asset value per share (HK$) (Note) gREEFEGET) (F) 3.14 2.30 36.5%

Note:  Based on 2,249,494,328 shares (2013: 1,709,296,000 shares) as at 31 December 2014,
being 2,273,876,128 shares issued and fully paid less 24,381,800 shares held under the
Company's share award scheme (2013: 1,727,650,000 shares issued and fully paid less

18,354,000 shares held under the Company's share award scheme).

fiaE: BERZ-_TE-—WF+=-_A=+—H
#)2249494328f% |k (= T — = F:
1,709,296,000 8% B% 13 ) - B12,273,876,128 %
B 81T RBUR IR 179 08 2 24,381,800 R AR &
RRARRMDEEFERFERRG (25 —=
F 1 1,727,650,000 % B B 17 R AR RO R
% |8354000@%&5{“7$@Eﬂﬂ%ﬁ“ﬁﬁbﬁ%ﬂ
BENRGD)GE

W4 EH BREREBERERAA 7



Financial Summary

S 2

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set our below:

RESULTS
LS

AEEBERFNTIRXERNEERAER
T -

For the year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—E-NF —T-=F ZT-——F ZT——F ZT-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET FTAT FTAT FTAT

Revenue and other income Wozs K Ho At A 1,661,041 1,139,368 790,740 703,154 658,094

Profit before tax B A A 929,216 619,526 355,402 330,235 288,407

Profit for the year FNE A 801,915 537,758 307,150 287,448 252,624
Profit attributable to equity RRAIRIERE AR R

holders of the company 799,791 536,398 307,003 287,706 250,685

2014 Renvenue mix
—E-MERHFS
= |nvestment holding

RAER
4%

m Dealing and broking
BB RS

2013 Revenue mix

ZE-ZFREHFE
® Investment holding
AR
12%

B Dealing and broking
HERER

® Loans and financing

BERRmE

|

y/ 12% N
N
Fixed income business .
BEEMAER \ u ggéngagement )
7% . = 6%
%

® Loans and financing
EREEE

|
| m Corporate finance

RERFEE

\
Fixed income business

BB AZEH
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERAR

Financial Summary

S 2

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —F-=F T ZF——F ZT-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT FET
Loans and advances to customers ~ E R R B #HK 9,099,164 6005392 3058102 2064215 1975894
Financial asset at fair value through &2 F{EFT ABE A
profit or loss CREE 1,353,089 983717 482,220 150,716 84,099
Held-to-maturity investments BREIERE = = 77,520 77,728 77833
Derivative financial instruments MTESMTA 1,766 — — —
Cash and cash equivalent BekBRe%EEY 889,286 485295 384,554 661,856 441,631
Client trust bank balances BPEERITEH 9,009,909 7966841 5883941 6121768 587497l
Other current assets Hi e EE 1,130,166 1020404 1052884 354711 947,553
Other non-current assets Hi3EmB & E 521,501 525,092 547516 570,470 573,679
Total assets BEBHE 22,004,881 16986741 11486737 10001464 9975660
Bank borrowings and debt securities $R1TfE R & E I TH) (4,633,842) (3,710,819) (825,820) (200,000)
in issue BERES
Derivative financial instruments eI A (1,766) — — —
Other liabilities Hia’E (10,304,059)  (9.328605)  (7.261,152)  (6569446)  (6903311)
Non-controlling interests TR 2 (9.801) (7,677) (6317) (6,170) (6,428)
Shareholders’ fund BEES 7055413 3939640 3393448 3225848 306592l

014 BREREBRERERAT 9



Chairman’s Statement
FEHEE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report to you that the Group's result outperformed the market and peers
in the 2014 financial year, which accomplished an promising strong growth compared with

the corresponding period last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue of the Group reached HK$1.657
billion, representing a leap of 46.1%, while the profit after tax recorded a substantial

increase of 49.1% compared with the previous year to a record high at HK$802 million.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.13 per
share (2013: HK$0.13). Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.08 per share (2013:
HK$0.03), the aggregate dividend for the year will be HK$0.21 per share (2013: HKS0.16).

RESULTS REVIEW

In 2014, the trend of economic recovery was basically established in the United States,
while the economy in Europe underwent a slow recovery with resistance. The Chinese
economy sought to meet the strategic target of structural adjustment with growth, and
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect was formally unveiled in November 2014. As at
31 December 2014, the Hang Seng Index closed at 23,605.04 points, which concluded the
whole year with a slight rise of 1%. The number of companies newly listed in the primary
market of Hong Kong increased by | 1% year-on-year to 122 and funds raised from IPOs
amounted to HK$227.7 billion, up 35% year-on-year and total fund raised amounted to
HK$935.8 billion, achieved a substantial year-on-year increase of 147%. The secondary
market was picking up with the average daily tumover of HK$69.5 billion, representing a

['1% rise from the same period last year.

Under this backdrop, the Group increased its resources in corporate finance, fixed
income, brokerage, loan and financing, and investment businesses, which accelerated the

development of above businesses.

10 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report
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In 2014, as the core businesses and advantageous businesses of the Group, our
consultancy and financial advisory and equity capital markets businesses raised HK$33.0
billion and HK$19.0 billion, respectively, for our clients in primary market and secondary
market respectively by completion of 38 projects. The income from the consultancy and
financial advisory services achieved a substantial year-on-year increase of 30.6%, and the
income from the equity capital markets achieved a substantial year-on-year increase of
85.5%.

The Group actively expanded corporate bond issuance business and participated in 21

debt issues, the income from which increased by 239.8%.

Our dealing and broking business achieved a surge in their income in 2014. The income
from the securities dealing and broking business for this year grew considerably by 48.5%
compared with the previous year and that was far beyond the | 1% increase in the
average daily tumover of the market in Hong Kong. The advanced and efficient online
trading platform of the Group supports tradings in 8 stock markets, namely, Hong Kong,
the United States, A share and B share markets of Shanghai, B share markets of Shenzhen,
the United Kingdom, Japan, Canada and Singapore, and covers stock market of Malaysia,
Korea, Australia and Taiwan and global bond market, and 21 futures markets as well as
leveraged foreign exchange trading including offshore Renminbi. The said platform has
been extensively endorsed by our clients and the market. Currently, more than 90% of
the clients of the Group came from Mainland China. The number of new client accounts
opened exceeded 13,000 in 2014.

To support the rapid growth in the brokerage operations, the Group has been accelerating
and innovating its loan and financing business with increased capital investment. A rapid
increase in interest income from loans and financing was secured, and such income has
become one of the most important income sources of the Group. Among which, the
interest income of margin loans amounted to HK$550 million, increased by 80.5% in 2014

when compared with the previous year.

Besides, the Group's asset management operation delivered a substantial growth of 46.9%.
Apart from facilitating the rapid income growth, we also enhanced our cost and expense

management, effectively boosting our operating leverage.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHEE

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking into 2015, it is expected that the pace of recovery in the United States will
accelerate, and Europe's economy will turnaround, providing opportunities for global
economic growth. On the other hand, as a result of the expectation that U.S. dollar will
appreciate following interest rate hike and increasing capital inflow into developed markets
such as the United States, there would be impacts on the capital markets of Hong Kong
and China. In Chinga, from a domestic perspective, measures of deepening reform and
structural adjustment implemented by current government have brought initial success,
it would take more time for reaping the benefits of reform. On monetary policy, neutral
to slightly relaxed will be the key policy tone. The possibility of cuts in bank reserve
requirement ratio and benchmark interest rates is high. Based on the foregoing, we are

prudently optimistic about the future development of Hong Kong securities market.

Against this backdrop, we will rely on beneficial market position such as strong reputation,
broad client base and diversified investment product portfolio of Guotai Junan, the parent
company of the Group and one of the largest securities firms in Mainland China, to further
develop on the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and grasp the opportunity from the
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. We will actively consolidate the Group's advantages
in cross-border operations and continue to promote our strategy of business and market
diversification. In addition, the Group will leverage on the convenience, efficiency and
functionality of its integrated trading platform to encourage and assist PRC high-end clients
in their global asset allocation. The above actions will ensure that the Group will maintain

stable, speedy and sustainable development.

In 2015, the Group will increase its capital base, operating capability for large-scale
financing projects, the ability to respond to market volatility and profitability. The Group
will also enhance the development of its corporate finance, debt financing as well as asset
and wealth management businesses with a view to driving a steady and fast growth in its

income and revenue.

12 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report
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As the offshore business platform of Guotai Junan, the Group will continue to fully
leverage our advantages in core talent, risk control, information technology and innovative
capability to establish core competitiveness, enrich product and service, broaden its
client base, optimize the income structure and accelerate international layout. We are
committed to developing ourselves into a leading international investment bank in the

Asia Pacific region and will do our every best to maximize the values for our shareholders.

Dr. YIM Fung, P
Chairman

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited

5 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

/\ggﬁ@ $ﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted various
measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate govemance during the year ended 3| December 2014. For the year ended 3|
December 2014, except for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the Company has

complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are committed to upholding the
corporate governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures

are in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

This report sets out a detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted

and observed by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the
Group, monitoring its financial performance, maintaining effective oversight over the
management, risks assessment, controls over business operations and ensuring good
corporate governance and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board
members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the

shareholders' value in the long run.

14  GUOTAIJUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors:

Executive Directors: Dr. YIM Fung (Chairman)
Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. QI Haiying
Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Independent

Non-executive Directors:

The list of Directors of the Company and their roles and functions is posted on the

websites of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are all with well recognised experience and
expertise in accounting or other fields who can provide valuable advice to the Board.
They were appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 19 June 2010

and renewed for a further term of three vears in 2013.

There is no relationship between members of the Board. Pursuant to the requirement
of the Listing Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
since 24 August 2012. Dr. YIM joined the Group in 2000 and has been responsible for
the overall business management of the Group, he has over 23 years' experience in the
securities industry. Although this arrangement constitutes a deviation from code provision
A2.l of the CG Code, the Directors consider that vesting of two roles in the same
person provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development
and execution of the Group's business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. While
the responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are vested in one person,
all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board members and the senior
management of the Company. There are three Independent Non-executive Directors in
the Board, the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and the current

arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

Board Process

Full board meets in person no less than 4 times a year. Notice of at least 14 days is given
for a regular board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda
and accompanying board papers for each meeting are circulated in full to all Directors
before the meeting. Senior management executives may, from time to time, be invited to
attend the board meetings for making presentation and/or answering any queries that may

be raised by the Board.

The Company Secretary will assist the Board in setting agenda for meetings, and each
Director of the Company is given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted
in the agenda. Where any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any
transactions, the Director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant
meeting. Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the meetings for

comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, 5 board meetings were held and the individual

attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director

EsnA

Dr. YIM Fung HEEL

Mr. WONG Tung Ching LERE

Ms. QI Haiying BBELL L

(appointed on 5 March 2015) (RZZ-AF=ARAREMA)
Mr. LI Guangjie FhAKE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHEEE

Dr. FU Tingmei BEEEL

Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE

Board meetings were held to discuss the business strategies of the Group, monitor
financial and operational performance, approve the annual and interim results of the
Group, discuss the corporate governance functions of the Board, review the Group's
policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and review

the codes applicable to directors and employees.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the Independent Non-executive
Directors without presence of the Executive Directors and the management was held to
discuss and review the performance of the Executive Directors and the management, and

the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the interests of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors has entered
into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to re-election by the Company at an annual general meeting (“AGM")
upon retirement. In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors or, if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, will retire from office by rotation and every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire every year will be those who have been longest in

office since their last re-election or appointment.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31 December

2014 is set out below:

Name of Director

B3R

Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung
Mr. WONG Tung Ching
Ms. QI Haiying
(appointed on 5 March 2015)
Mr. LI Guangjie
Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Notes: A = attending seminar

B = delivering speech

Corporate Governance Functions

HITEE

A Et
RERE

e S

(RZE-RF=ARREZM)

FRANKLE
FERLE

BUHHTEF
BEXEL
REBL
BRELE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties, including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

(¢)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(Corporate Governance Code).
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising

certain functions of the senior management.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

comprises only Independent Non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The Committee
reviews financial information of the Group, monitors the effectiveness of the external audit
and oversees the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the Company's
external auditor, as well as their independence. The Committee will meet regularly to
review financial reporting process, all business affairs managed by the Executive Directors
in particular on connected transactions and continuing connected transactions, if any, to
review the interim and final financial statements before their submission to the Board and
the annual general meeting for approval and to review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management system of the Group, including the intemnal audit function.
A copy of the terms of reference of the Committee has been posted on the Company's

website (www.gtja.comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Committee met on 4 occasions and the

individual attendance of the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

Esng

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE
Dr. FU Tingmei BEEdL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
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During the year, the Committee has considered the external auditor's proposed audit
fees, discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit, reviewed the interim and annual financial statements of the Group, particularly
judgmental areas, before submission to the Board, reviewed the internal control system
and the internal audit plan, findings and management’s response, reviewed the Group's
adherence to the code provisions in the Code. The Committee recommended the Board

to adopt the interim and annual financial statements for 2014.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors:  Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the Group
and fixing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the Board as a whole
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. No
Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The Committee will meet at
least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference
which has been posted on the Company's website. The Committee is provided with the
sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report
their findings and recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval. The full
terms of reference of the Committee are available on the Company's website (www.gtja.

comhk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance of the Committee

members is set out below:

Name of Director

Exps

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL
Dr. SONG Ming REEL

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DR T

BEE+ (RN -F—MF
+=ZB+=RE)

Dr. YIM Fung (resigned on
12 December 2014)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee currently

comprises 3 Directors:

Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Executive Director: Dr. YIM Fung

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors. When making recommendations, the Committee will consider a number of
factors of the Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience. The full terms of reference of the Committee are

available on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange's website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Committee held | meeting to review and
discuss appointment and succession planning of Directors. The individual attendance of

the Committee members is set out below:

Name of Director

Exps

Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRBITE
Dr. YIM Fung HEEL

DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT

The management team of the Company (the “Management”) is led by the Executive
Directors of the Board and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate business policies, make
decision on key business issues and exercise power and authority delegated by the Board
from time to time. The Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the

operation of the Group.

The Company has clear direction on the Board's delegation of powers to the

Management. Some powers are reserved to the Board, including but not limited to:

- Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
= Proposing dividend distribution to the shareholders’ meeting;

= Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and remuneration policy;

= Review on internal control system and risk management;

= Changes to major group structure or Board composition;

- Proposed transaction requiring shareholders’ approval (e.g. connected transaction,
notifiable transaction, etc.); and

- Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.
Prior to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting policies,
the relevant financial information is discussed between the external auditor and the

management, and then submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

External Auditors
During the year ended 31 December 2014, Emst & Young was appointed as the external
auditors of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external auditor is set out as

follows:

Services rendered

PR AR 7
Audit services ZH RS
Interim review i HiEE

BB RE AR

Tax and other consultancy services

Internal Control
The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain an adequate system of internal

control and review its effectiveness.

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and fairness of the financial
statements, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. It provides
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss rather than

elimination of risks associated with business activities.
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For the year ended 3| December 2014, the Audit Committee, as delegated by the Board,
has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. It has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and

financial reporting functions and their training programs and budgets.

In addition, the Internal Auditor of the Company conducts regular and independent
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviews the findings and opinion of the Internal Auditor on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control system and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board also annually reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs and budget.

The Board is of the view that the system of intemal controls in place for the year under
review and up to the date of issuance of this annual report is sound and is sufficient
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Group's
assets. The resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's accounting and

financial functions, and their training programs and budget are adequate.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by the
management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports to the Board and the
Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate risk
level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually
in consultation with, but independent of, the Management, and the audit plan is submitted
to the Audit Committee for approval. On a quarterly basis, the head of the internal audit
team will present a report and express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control environment of the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and
processes of the Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed

on specific areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had made specific
enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code. All Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model

Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all shareholders. The
Company encourages two-way communications with both its institutional and private
investors. Extensive information about the Company's activities is provided on its website
(www.gtja.com.hk) and in its interim report and this annual report which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees together with the external auditor are present to answer shareholders'
questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each separate issue and voting of which is taken by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are published on the Company's website and the
Stock Exchange's website. All corporate communication with shareholders will be posted

on the Company's website (www.gtja.com.hk) for shareholders’ information.

The 2014 annual general meeting was held on 14 May 2014. The attendance record of

the Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Director

EEpA

Dr. YIM Fung HEET

Mr. WONG Tung Ching ITLERE

Ms. QI Haiying WBEL L

(appointed on 5 March 2015) (RZE-hF=ARHEZMA)
Mr. LI Guangjie FhAKE

Mr. LI Sang, Edward FHEELE

Dr. FU Tingmei BEXEL

Dr. SONG Ming REET

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung TIRRILE
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Under code provisions E.I.2 and A.6.7 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the Board, the
Independent Non-executive Directors and chairman of each of the board committees
should attend the annual general meeting. Dr. Yim Fung (Chairman of the Board) and
Dr. Song Ming (Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman of Nomination
Committee) were unable to attend the 2014 annual general meeting due to their other

business commitments. All other Directors have attended the meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There was no change to the Company's Articles of Association during the year of 2014.
A copy of the latest version of the Articles of Association is posted on the websites of the

Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

In light of the new Companies Ordinance which took effect on 3 March 2014, the
Board has proposed the adoption of a new set of Articles of Association to replace
the Company's current Articles of Association and will seek Shareholders’ approval at
the 2015 annual general meeting. The new Articles of Association align with the new
provisions/requirements under the new Companies Ordinance, details of which and other
business to be conducted at the 2015 annual general meeting will be set out in the circular
to Shareholders to be sent together with this annual report and posted on the websites

of the Company (www.gtja.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meeting may require the directors of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM"). The shareholder shall make a written requisition
authenticated by him/her to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at
the registered address of the Company at 27/F,, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong, specifying the objects of the meeting, the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal regarding any

specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.

If the Directors of the Company do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to call an EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the shareholder(s) concermed, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after

the expiration of 3 months from the said date.
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The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors of the

Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 580 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward proposals at general meetings. Any number of shareholders
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having a right to
vote at the general meeting, or at least 50 shareholders of the Company having a right to
vote at the general meeting, may request in writing the Company to circulate resolutions
which may properly be moved and are intended to be moved at an annual general
meeting; and to circulate statements regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings.
The requisition must be authenticated by the person(s) making it and should be deposited
at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 18]
Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary where, (i)
in the case of requisition for the circulation of resolutions to be moved at annual general
meetings, the requisition must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before
an annual general meeting; or (ii) in the case of requisition for the circulation of statements
regarding resolutions proposed at general meetings, such requisition must be received by

the Company not later than 7 days before the general meetings.

The procedures for nomination of Directors by the shareholders of the Company are

available on the Company's website at http:/Awww.gtja.com.hk.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board of the
Company in writing through the Company Secretary at the registered address of the
Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders' enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to

answer the shareholders’ questions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

RESULT AND OVERVIEW

We are pleased to report to our shareholders that Guotai Junan International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) achieved
another remarkable result for the year ended 31 December 2014, reporting a profit after
tax of HK$801.9 million (2013: HK$537.8 million) and representing an increase of 49.1%
as compared to 2013. The revenue of the Group reached HK$1,656.6 million (2013:
HK$1,134.0 million), representing an increase of 46.1%. The promising result was due
to the solid growth of our core businesses: dealing and broking, corporate finance, asset
management, fixed income and loans and financing, which recognized remarkable growth

ranged from 38.3% to 79.7% as compared to the prior year.

The board of directors (the “Board") of the Company has proposed a payment of final
dividend of HK$0.13 per share (2013: HK$0.13 per share). Together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.08 per share (2013: HK$0.03 per share), dividend paid for 2014
amounts to a total of HK$0.2| per share (2013: HK$0.16 per share).

CORPORATE REVIEW

Following the rapid expansion of the business of the Group in 2013, the Group continued
to invest resources in exploring different business opportunities. In January 2014, the
Group has entered into a 3-year syndicated loan agreement with a number of banks
for a total facility of HK$3,300 million. In April, subsequent to the announcement of the
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program, the Group did a placment of shares and
raised a total of HK$687.2 million. In addition, prior to the launch of the Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect Program, in September, the Group did a rights issue to existing
shareholders and raised a total of HK$2,004.9 million. As a result, the Group has raised
more than HK$5,992.1 million in total from debt and equities during 2014. We believe
that this can reinforce the Group's capital and financial strength to cater for the tremedous

growth of our business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B0 A

BUSINESS REVIEW REDRE

The Group's businesses include dealing and broking, corporate finance, asset management, REENERBHEENEL  CERE B
fixed income business, loans and financing and investment holding. The highlight of the EEE IE%Z SEK B MREURKEE
results for the year ended 31 December 2014 was the strong growth in the revenues ¥ - BE_E-NE+_A=+—HIEE
generated from our core businesses: dealing and broking, corporate finance, asset WEESIR ﬁd BROER(BENEL ¥

management, fixed income and loans and financing, which achieved a total revenue of mE BEETE BATWaAREZRERE)

HK$1,656.6 million (2013: HK$1,134.0 million) The allocation of revenue has been listed ARSI R - 825 | 6566 B BB T

below. (ZZ—ZF: | 1340B&ET) - KANHE
BRI o

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLHE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THET % TET %

Fee and commission income WERAERA
— dealing and broking -BEREL 521,556 31.5 377,057 333
— corporate finance —ERE 200,938 12.1 123,980 10.9
— asset management -BEERE 46,387 2.8 31,568 28
Income from fixed income business Bl TE Uz E WA 123,269 75 68,593 60
Income from loans and financing ERRBERA 702,560 424 397924 35.1
Gain on investment holding REEB W 61,872 37 134,834 119
Total revenue Bl 1,656,582 100.0 1,133956 1000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

Dealing and broking

Despite strong competition in the market, our result from dealing and broking business
was encouraging and the revenue achieved HK$52 1.6 million (2013: HK$377.1 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2014. A breakdown of the revenue of dealing and broking

is set out below:

BERER

BECMBLIERANSEE  ZAMANEERL
REBNBRBLABRENELE - BE_T—
F+-_RA=1+—HLLFE BERELEBH
BURESDIAEBTL(ZE—=F 377158
BIT) c REBERELEBBABRLNT

For the year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-HLHFE

2014 2013
—2-mF —F=F

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THERT % FAT %
Securities B 435,037 834 292,892 777
Futures HE 30,395 5.8 43,868 1.6
Leveraged foreign exchange trading ~ 1B1ZINERZ 5 1,646 03 3517 09
Wealth management service B8 AR 2,044 0.4 363 0.1
Handling income FEE 52,434 10.1 36417 9.7
521,556 100.0 377,057 100.0

Our dealing and broking business was built on the success of our reliable and efficient BFMEE R L EFEE RN KBRF A

online trading platform. The platform covers various chanels, including internet, FIX
network and even the most trendy mobile apps. Currently, our online trading platform
supports 8 securities markets including Hong Kong, United States, Shanghai A and B
shares, Shenzhen B shares, London, Japan, Canada, Singapore, 21 global futures markets
and 8 currency pairs including CNH and up to 21 cross currency pairs in leveraged foreign
exchange trading. Our securities dealing and broking services also cover securities markets

in Malaysia, Korea, Australia, Taiwan and global fixed income market.

Although dealing and broking commission income is directly affected by the level of
market activities and trading, we consider that expansion of client base is crucial to the
success of the business. We successfully recruited more than 13,000 new clients for the

year ended 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The rapid growth in our securities dealing and broking activities contributed significantly
to the increase of our dealing and broking revenue. We outperformed the average daily
turnover of the Hong Kong market with our average daily turnover of the Hong Kong
market increased by 35% during the vear. In addition, benefited from the US economic
recovery, our average daily turnover for the US market also increased by |19% on a year-
on-year basis. As a result, our securities dealing and broking was encouraging and the
revenue increased by 48.5% to HK$435.0 million (2013: HK$292.9 million) for the year
ended 3| December 2014.

Corporate finance

Our corporate finance business covers equity capital markets and consultancy and financial

advisory. A breakdown of the revenue for corporate finance business is set out below:

B B i B0 A

IARFEERELEBNRRER AN
BEERARBRSFEETERNER - £
FMRBEMSTHEARREBRLER

35%  BEBABMHFHKFLEE o fhoh - X
EREBELENESR  BMAREEMENEAR
THRRBITEREER19% Bt - &M
mﬂﬁﬁé&@ﬁWAﬁﬁAAﬁﬁvﬁﬁ:
—ME+ZA=+-BLEFEE #&wﬁ%
i*ﬂu485%i43so§]%ﬁ§7n( —=%:
229B8ETT) °

hXmE

FANEEREXBEEREEATEEBN
TEBERLBETH BULEBEXHERA
BT

For the year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-HLEFE

2014 2013
—2-mF —F=F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THERT % FAT %
Placing, underwriting and BREZHFNEE - Bk
sub-underwriting commission NEHEMAE
of equity securities 131,815 65.6 71,070 57.3
Consultancy and financial advisory fee EEf R B & AE 69,123 344 52910 42.7
200,938 100.0 123,980 100.0

We devote to provide a range of high quality corporate finance advisory and equity
capital markets services to our clients in Hong Kong, the PRC and around the world.
Our corporate finance advisory services include: acting as sponsor in relation to Main
Board and GEM Board listing of securities in Hong Kong, providing corporate finance and
compliance advisory services and other capital raising solutions and services. The equity
capital market operation provides a variety of distribution services for fund raising activities

in primary and secondary markets.

ZABORARAEEE  FEABIEZIK
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7 o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

While the capital market in Hong Kong was generally good during the year, with the
total amount raised through IPO of HK$227.7 billion and the total funds raised through
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange of HK$935.8 billion (including IPOs), the performance
of our corporate finance business was exceptional. In the primary market, we had been
the sponsor for 7 companies, bookrunner for || companies and placing agent for 5
companies. In the secondary market, our performance was also outstanding, being
bookrunner for | rights issue exercise, underwriter for 2 placments, and placing agent for
| rights issue and || placing exercises. We assisted corporates in Hong Kong to raise a
total of more than HK$33 billion in the primary equity market and HK$19 billion in the

secondary equity market.

We have been also engaged as compliance adviser for 49 newly listed companies and

financial adviser for 23 projects.

As a result, the income generated from consultancy and financial advisory services
significantly increased by 30.6% to HK$69.1 million (2013: HK$52.9 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The income generated from equity capital markets increased

by 85.5% to HK$131.8 million (2013: HK$71.1 million).

Asset management

We derived our fee income primarily from management fee and performance fee,
which are linked to the asset under management (“AUM") and the returns of the funds,
respectively. For the year ended 3| December 2014, we have successfully launched |
private investment fund, 2 authorized bond funds and 6 RQFII managed accounts. The
asset management income increased by 46.9% to HK$46.4 million (2013: HK$31.6

million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Fixed income business

We actively participated in the debt issuance market and market trading during 2014
and achieved tremendous growth in our fixed income business. The revenue of the fixed

income business is set out as follows:

B B i B0 A

B W EH

FME-_T-NFENERL2EEBETHER
mHER S ATREXBRERRER - BT
W R R AT -

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLHE

2014 2013
—EF-nE =%
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
T % THET %
Placing, underwriting and ERERFEE &
sub-underwriting commission pRak:lika
of debt securities 86,887 70.5 25,569 373
Net (loss)/gain on debt securities EREFRITE SR IAMN
and derivative financial instruments  (E518) /W a5 (17,151) (13.9) 24,138 352
Interest income on debt securities &I E ZFHIF SHA 53,533 434 18,886 275
123,269 100.0 68,593 100.0
Taking advantage of the low interest rate environment, corporate clients preferred debt ARMSNERE - EXREFRANNBES
financing for medium to long term development. The Group actively participated in the MESKEPRBER - ASEREB2HEE
debt issuance activities and has participated in 2| debt issuance exercises (2013: 5 debt BETED 2HT2URE f&%ﬂ( =
issues). As a result, the commission income from debt issuance business has significantly FSREBET) Bt BE-FT-NF
increased by 239.8% to HK$86.9 million (2013: HK$25.6 million) for the year ended 31 +:H:+—E¢¢E'&ﬁ%ﬂiﬁmﬁ

December 2014,

The interest income from debt securities increased by 183.5% to HK$53.5 million
(2013:HK$18.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014, which was offset by the
net fair value loss of debt securities and derivative financial instruments of HK$17.1 million
(2013: gain of HK$24.1 million). As a result, the net gain from debt trading was HK$36.4
million (2013: HK$43.0 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUWAKRBIEIN398%EIAEBTL(ZE
—=E I S6ABBT) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

Loans and financing

Loans and financing has been our growth driver since the listing of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the loans and financing income significantly increased by
76.6% to HK$702.6 million (2013: HK$397.9 million). A summary of income from loans

and financing is set out below:

ERRmE

BASE LU ERRBEER —ERHK
MMEEZERHH - HE_T-—NF+=A
ST—HEFE  EFRBERAKIEL M
766%E7026BEBIT(ZT—=4F:39798
BAETL) ERKBERABENT :

For the year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-HLHFE

2014 2013
—E-mE =%
HK$000 % HK$'000 %
THERT % FAT %
Margin loans FRER 549,716 782 304613 76.6
Term loans EHER 60,804 8.7 34,900 8.8
IPO loans BRARRBEEER 5,308 08 2,225 05
Banks and others |ATREAM, 86,732 123 52274 13.1
Held-to-maturity investments FEIERE — — 3912 1.0
702,560 100.0 397,924 100.0

In supporting the business development of margin and other financing, the Group
conducted a series of syndicated loan and equities raising activities to raise approximately
HK$6.0 billion during the year. The average margin loan balance increased by 77.8% to
HK$6,743.0 million (2013: HK$3,792.7 million) in 2014 while the income from margin
loan increased by 80.5% to HK$549.7 million (2013: HK$304.6 million) for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Other than margin loan business, the Group also engaged in term loan business so as to
facilitate our customers’ other financial needs. The income from term loan increased by
74.2% to HK$60.8 million (2013: HK$34.9 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Investment holding

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's investment holding business can be classified into 3 categories: listed equity

investment, unlisted unconsolidated fund investment and a convertible bond in relation to

the direct investment in a private company. The gain from our investment holding business

was HK$61.9 million (2014: HK$134.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2014. A

summary of gain is set out below:

B B i B0 A

RERH

AEENREEBIESRIE : LTRER
B LT HESRAREERENLA
AAMABRES BE-T-—HNF+=A
StT-RLEFE REEBORGERIBE
ABIL(ZE—F : 1348BEBT) - Wah#
ZF5IMT -

For the year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t-BLHE

2014 2013
—E-pE =%
HK$000 % HK$'000 %
T % THET %
Net fair value gain on financial assets HEEE S MEEMN LN T(E
held for trading Wz e 14,976 242 125,522 93.1
Net fair value gain on financial assets R A TEFABRNEREE
designated at fair value through GOPNSRIED Gy &
profit or loss 34,955 56.5 5296 39
Interest income from financial assets ¥ E & A A ABEH
designated at fair value through EREENMEHRA
profit or loss 2,985 48 2,985 22
Dividend income from financial HIEEEEREENRERA
assets held for trading 8,956 14.5 1,031 08
61,872 100.0 134,834 100.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group's total assets increased by 29.5% to HK$22,004.9 million (2013: HK$16,986.7
million) as at 31 December 2014.

The Group's total liabilities increased by 14.6% to HK$14,939.7 million (2013:
HK$13,039.4 million) as at 31 December 2014.

Following two equity fund raising activities in 2014, the equity attributable to owners of
the parent increased by 79.1% to HK$7,055.4 million (2013: HK$3,939.6 million) as at
31 December 2014. The leveraged ratio (defined as total assets less accounts payable to
clients divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent) decreased by 18.2% to 1.83
times (2013: 2.23 times) as at 3| December 2014.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2014, the net current assets of the Group increased by |18.9% to
HK$7,566.9 million (2013: HK$3,456.6 million). The Group's current ratio was at 1.54
times as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 1.27 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has completed two equity fund

raising activities as follows:

On 14 April 2014, the Company, Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (the “Vendor” and a
Substantial shareholder) and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Placing
Agent” and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a placing and
subscription agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, the Vendor conditionally agreed to (i)
place through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 160,000,000 existing shares
of the Company held by the Vendor at the placing price of HK$4.30 per placing share;
and (i) subscribe for such number of the shares of the Company equal to the number
of placing shares which were placed by the Placing Agent at the subscription price of
HK$4.30 per subscription share. A total of 160,000,000 placing shares beneficially owned
by the Vendor were placed to not less than 6 placees at HK$4.30 per placing share. On
25 April 2014, 160,000,000 subscription shares were issued and allotted to the Vendor at
HK$4.30 per subscription share. The net proceeds of HK$687.2 million have been applied

towards the general working capital of the Group.

On 18 August 2014, the Company proposed a rights issue on the basis of | rights issue
for every 5 existing shares held by the shareholders of the Company at the rights issue
price of HK$5.30 per share. The rights issue was completed on 29 September 2014 and
378,560,000 shares were issued on 30 September 2014. After deducting the expense
in connection with this rights issue amounting to approximately HK$1.5 million, the net
proceeds of HK$2,004.9 million were applied towards the business development of

margin and other financing of the Group.

In order to provide resources for the expansion of the Group's business, the Group has
entered into a facility agreement with certain financial institutions in an aggregate amount

of HK$3.3 billion for a term of 3 years in January 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

The Group had a cash inflow of HK$404.0 million (2013: HK$100.7 million) for the year
ended 3| December 2014 and the Group’s bank balance was HK$889.3 million as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$485.3 million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group had
outstanding bank borrowings of HK$4,462.7 million (2013: HK$3,386.1 million) through
facilities with various banks. During the year under review, the Group has successfully
renewed the Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme”) of which both
listed and unlisted notes may be issued under the MTN Programme. We have issued
seven series of the notes during the year and the notes outstanding as at 3| December
2014 was HK$171.1 million (2013: HK$324.7 million). The gearing ratio (defined as bank
and other borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the parent) was 0.66 times as at
31 December 2014 (2013: 0.94 times). Taking into account of the unutilized facilities from
various financial institutions and the significant un-issued portion of the MTN Programme,
we believe our operating cash flow remains adequate to finance our recurrent working
capital requirements as well as any investment opportunities that may arise in the near

future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N)
for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new business. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their respective liquid capital requirements

during the year and up to the date of this report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt

instruments issued by the Company during the year and at the end of the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

Driven by the strong economic growth in the past two decades, the capital markets in
China developed rapidly. With the pace for the internationalization of RMB speeding up
in the last few years, Hong Kong becomes the major gateway for cross border financial
activities. The launch of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program in November
2014 was an important step in the China capital market reform, which allowed mainland
Chinese to do offshore investment individually and at the same time granted offshore
investors direct access to the Chinese stock markets. We are expecting China will
continue to open up its capital markets and encourage more cross border financial
activities. The recently discussed Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program may
be the next phase in enlarging the scale of cross border activities. Hong Kong capital
market will be benefited in terms of the increase in capital market activities as well as the

secondary market trading activities.

Against this backdrop, the Group is prudently optimistic about the market development
in Hong Kong in 2015. We will strive to secure all these business opportunities that may
be available to us. We will continue to rely on the strong reputation, broad client base
and diversified investment portfolio of our parent company Guotai Junan, to strengthen
synergy and interaction between us. We will actively consolidate the Group's advantages
in cross border operations and continue to promote our strategy of business and market
diversification. In addition, the Group will leverage on the convenience, efficiency and
functionality of its integrated trading platform to encourage and assist clients to do their

global asset allocation.

MATERIAL ACQUSITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
For the year ended 3| December 2014, the Group had not made any material
acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies. As at 31 December

2014, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company had guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings up to HK$5,199.5
million (2013: HK$2,730 million) as at 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the
Company provided guarantees up to HK$248.9 million (31 December 2013: HK$249.0
million) in favour of financial institutions in respect of trading limit and insurance brokerage
limit granted to wholly-owned subsidiaries principally engaged in the provision of securities

and futures dealing and broking services.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 31

December 201 3.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Group had capital commitments for an IT upgrade and office renovation of
approximately HK$6,681,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at 3|
December 2014 (2013: HK$533,000).

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and merger
activities and financial obligations on loan facilities provided to customers. As at 3|
December 2014, the underwriting and financial obligations were approximately HK$12.3
million and HK$763.0 million respectively (2013: HK$256.8 million and HK$176.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration
packages are offered to employees by reference to prevailing market rate and individual
merits. As at 31 December 2014, we had 277 employees in total (excluding our self-
employed account executives). Salaries are reviewed on annual basis and discretionary
bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the Group's performance and individual
performance. Share options and awarded shares have been granted to the directors (the
“Directors”) and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their contribution
made or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the Group include

mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to control
risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and IT system in all its

major operations.

Credit Risk

Loans and financing activities

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of the
Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Credit and Risk Management
Department. The Credit Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons to
take charge in approving credit limit and margin limit of each client. The Credit and Risk
Management Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of margin
clients exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be made good according
to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be daily monitored by the Credit and Risk
Management Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in the liquidation of the
client's positions. The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as
margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved margin collateral stocks will

be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of credit risk. The
Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit analysis of potential loan
investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance

of the loan investment. The key investment decisions are subject to approval by the Board.

Loans and advances to customers also include IPO loans for subscription of new shares which
are normally settled within one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation action
would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific period of tolerance

after IPO allotment result announced.

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's rating or
their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for managing of
the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment through the use of

internal ratings tools.

For the Group’s bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in respectable
large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated

accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in Hong Kong.

Dealing and broking

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from dealing in
securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term of | to 3 days. The
Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities transactions
(normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All application for the credit limit must be reviewed by
Credit Manager and approved by any member of the Credit Committee. Credit and Risk
Management Department determines whether forced liquidation action is to be taken against
clients with overdue balances on case-by-case basis. The overdue report is regularly reviewed

by the Credit Committee.

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and leveraged foreign
exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the current position of the
customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required
margin deposit of each futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by
the Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin call will be executed if there is a deficit in
the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client's position will be executed if the customer

fails to meet margin calls.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial institutions which

are governed by regulators.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other assets

which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have minimal credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance

Accounts receivable arising from asset management and corporate finance services are from
trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The credit risk with these trade

counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual circumstances or market
condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by an
evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to
all individual accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be recognised when
clients failed to meet margin call requirements and clients collateral are insufficient to cover

their outstanding loan balances.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements as
prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to ensure that it
maintains adequate liquid capital to fund its financial obligations and to comply with the relevant
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.57IN). As a safeguard, the Group has

maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any contingency in its operations.

The Board believes that even in periods of high market volatility, the Group's working capital is

adequate to meet its financial obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B i B3 A

Market Risk
The asset quality of our margin client’s collateral will deteriorate when the market comes down
drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting commitments will be also affected at times

of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling the market
risk arising in the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests will be performed when

necessary.

The Group also has listed investments and unlisted investments that are subject to the market
risk. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed due diligence analysis of
potential investments, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance of the investment. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by

the Investment Committee.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollars and
U.S. dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal compared to its
total asset and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk is managed and monitored by our Finance
Department. For the leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over
the position has been adopted, hence, we consider that our foreign exchange risk exposure is

manageable.

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various [T systems and a team
will act and report to the senior management in accordance with the established procedures
in the event of disruption, instability and other situations which may warrant to trigger the

contingency procedure to protect interest of clients.

The Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major operations on an on-
going basis in accordance to the regulatory and industrial requirements. We have also put in
place competent compliance and intemal audit functions with their respective aims at detecting
internal control risks and recommending policy changes as well as carrying out checks on

statutory compliance and the intemnal rules and regulations.
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Executive Directors

YIM Fung (BJI£), aged 51, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of our Group.
Dr. Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for
the overall business management of our Group. Dr. Yim has over 23 years' experience in
the securities industry. Dr. Yim is a senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics
from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (FF BT &1 E2
Brift7E &£ FT) and a bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua
University (BZEAZ). Dr. Yim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Dr. Yim is currently also an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Urban Construction Design & Development Group Co,, Limited (stock code: 1599) and
a non-executive director of Shenzhen Intemnational Holdings Limited (stock code: 152),
both listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Yim is a member of the Inner Mongolia 10th and
I 1th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, PRC,
and the 4th Chairman of the Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong. Dr. Yim was

appointed Justice of the Peace in July 201 3.

WONG Tung Ching (E45), aged 43, is an executive director, the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer and the head of the corporate finance and equity capital markets
divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong joined our Group in October 2000 and is responsible
for the overall business and marketing matters of corporate finance and equity capital
markets business of our Group. Mr. Wong obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the
University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in International Trading from the
Shenzhen University (RIIRZR) in 1992.

QI Haiying (B H), aged 33, is an executive director and the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of our Group. Between 2004 and 2012, Ms. Qi worked in Shenzhen Supervision
Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission on regulatory supervision of
securities companies and listed companies. Ms. Qi joined Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited in April 2012, holding a post of Deputy General Manager in the Compliance
Department and the Strategic Management Department respectively. Ms. Qi was
appointed as executive director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
5 March 2015. Ms. Qi holds a master degree of Financial Economics from London School
of Economics and Political Science (LSE) and a bachelor degree of International Economy

and Trade from the University of Intemational Business and Economics (UIBE) in China.

Biographies of the Directors
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Biographies of the Directors
EHERE

LI Guangjie (FYER), aged 46, is an executive director and the head of the sales house
team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is responsible for the
supervision and management of the Group's sales team. He has over 23 years' experience
in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li started his career at Shenzhen
Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants (Y€ BEEFTEIEFT) as the deputy head of
appraisal department. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the Shenzhen
University (&JIIXZ) and a master degree in Economics from the Central University of
Finance and Economics ({1 R EF48K28). He is also an economist and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (F BIFEf @511 E) and a member
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (F BIzEMFRISEN ).

LI Sang Edward (Z4), aged 51, is an executive director and the head of legal and
compliance of our Group. Mr. Li is also the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Li
joined our Group in May 2007 and is responsible for the legal, compliance and company
secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Li has over 22 years' of experience in legal and
financial services. He holds a master degree of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law from
the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnics University and a bachelor degree in Law from the University of London. Mr.

Li admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and Wales in 1995.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

FU Tingmei (fB3L3E), aged 48, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Fu was
appointed a Director on 19 June 2010. Dr. Fu has extensive experiences in investment,
finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many
corporate finance transactions in several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong,
including serving as a director of Peregrine Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director
and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Dr. Fu is
currently engaged in private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC
Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Fu graduated
from the University of London with a master's degree and a doctorate degree in Law in

1989 and 1993, respectively.
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SONG Ming (R#)), aged 53, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song has over
21 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management, financial market, and
macroeconomics. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China Financial Research (CCFR)
and a professor in Faculty of Business and Economics at the University of Hong Kong, Dr.
Song holds a doctorate degree in Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree
of Science in Mathematics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (ZEH
BH% K2 and a bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University
(HIKE). Dr. Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of United
Laboratories International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May 2007 and
independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (stock

code: 1369) since May 201 3.

TSANG Yiu Keung (2 1#22%), aged 61, is an independent non-executive director. Mr.
Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for
more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from the firm
in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
audit committee of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, and China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in
Hong Kong and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher
diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly the Hong
Kong Polytechnic).
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Report of the Directors
B

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking,

corporate finance, asset management, fixed income and loans and financing.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 73 and 74 of this annual

report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.08 per share and proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.13 per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the company on 27 May 2015. The dividend will be
payable on or about 12 June 2015.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment results are

shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to I31.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2014 is set out on pages 8 and

9 of this annual report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note | | to the financial statements which is set out on pages 140 and 14|

of this annual report.

PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in the note 22 to the financial statements

which is set out on pages 158 and 159 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements which is set out on pages 164 and 165 of this annual

report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the section of “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” and note 31 in
the financial statements on pages 174 to 176 of this annual report. As at 31 December
2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with
the provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$311,543,000 of which HK$292,434,000 has been proposed as final
dividend for the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$10,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2014, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue. The
Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no

value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer's share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.
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Report of the Directors
B

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company's listed securities for the year ended 31 December 2014 other than as an

agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award Scheme").

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Ms. QI Haiying (appointed on 3 March 2015)
Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that may
exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such contract,
give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make other payments

equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 177 to 179 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 95 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. QI
Haiying was appointed as a Director on 5 March 2015 and shall hold office until the next

annual general meeting, and being eligible and would offer herself for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire
from office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Mr. WONG Tung Ching, Dr. FU
Tingmei and Dr. SONG Ming shall retire by rotation. They will offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU Tingmei,
Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual report, still
considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each Independent
Non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3 Independent Non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

was a party during the year ended 3| December 2014.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their
associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Govemning the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERFETHRAEBRERAREMMA
BrEHO RO RABRAHER

R-Z-—ME+-A=1+—R0 ESHHHE
ARARFSEBEER (ERREFRBER
BI(EHREAEE ) EXV ) MRAS - %
ERBEEFRBABKRIEXVHETRSHHE
MEADR R - kiBEES RS G
F3EATEECRZEH BT - %
REBZAES EmRA EmRA) M+
FIEIZETRIME MG AL A REZFOT -

REXFAEBREAEROHRE

Approximate

percentage

Number of of the

underlying Company’s

shares held total number

under equity of shares

Number derivatives in issue

of awarded RALTE RN

Number of  shares held IAT BRI

Name of director Long/short positions Shares held Frissem g2l Total LY

EEpER B/ RR RGO EE ROBE RONHE ROBH HOEIL

YIM Fung Long 6,001,000 2,939,000 10,835,985 19,775,985 0.87%
Bl =3}

WONG Tung Ching Long 2,180,400 868,000 2,519,788 5,568,188 0.24%
x5 =3}

LI Guangjie Long = 235,000 2,771,990 3,006,990 0.13%
FRAR =9}

LI Sang, Edward Long 621 203,000 2,771,990 2975611 0.13%
4 =3}

FU Tingmei Long — — 504,032 504,032 0.02%
BEx =3}

SONG Ming Long = = 504,032 504,032 0.02%
RE =9}

TSANG Yiu Keung Long — — 504,032 504,032 0.02%
TRR =3}
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Long position in the ordinary shares of an associated corporation
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REBZENEERORRE

Name of Percentage of

associated Number  issued shares

Name of director Long/short positions  corporations Nature of interest of shares {HER1TRH

- R/RR EEEE AR BEME RE#E BOL

YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
& (Bi3E) =3} Management Limited  controlled corporation

BREZESER

BRAF
Note: Dr. YIM Fung, Chairman, executive director and chief executive officer, holds 92% equity
interests in Best New Management Limited, is deemed to have an interest in the 20.1%

equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in Guotai Junan Fund Management
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and the Share Award Scheme for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible
participants of the schemes include the Company's directors (including Independent Non-

executive Directors) and other employees of the Group.
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Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010 which shall be valid

and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.

On 10 January 2014, 50,000,000 share options have been granted to the Directors and
employees with the exercise price of HK$3.82 per share. Among the share options
granted, a total of 9,750,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company.
The closing price of the Company's shares on the date of the grant was HK$3.82. The
option period of the share options is from 10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024. One-third
of the share options granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries of

the date of grant respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, 1,000,000 share options with exercise price of
HK$3.82 each lapsed prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation. There was

no forfeiture of share options for the year ended 31 December 2014.

7,666,128 share options were exercised for the year ended 3| December 2014 and the
weighted average share price immediately preceding the exercise date during the year was

HK$5.23.
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Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 3|

December 2014 are as follows:
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BE_Z-NF+-_A=+—-HILFE  BR
B EETMEREZSHMT -

Share
Exercise price Weighted Adjusted
priceof  immediately average exercise
share options  precedingthe ~ Options held share price price of
at date of grant grantdate at | January Options Optionsheldat ~ immedately ~ share options’
(HKS) (HKS) 014 granted 31 December  preceding the (HKS)
Opons  RHAH  BERH W-Z-ME diingthe  eercised Adusted W04 exercise date fize
Date of gaed  EREN REW  -A-8 year during  duringthe  Lapsedduring  W-E-WE  REFE EhR#
Name of partcpants grant RLH il HRE BN ERREN the year yer'  theperid TZAZT-A AEEN kg
SRANE RiRg BhE (&) (&7) BhE ERE SRR EAER BRAN  BANERE NETORE (BT
Directors
23
YIMFung 2042012 6000000 150 25 6000000 - - 4387 - 6048387 NAZ 148
[ 107172014 4750000 38 3N - 4750000 - 3759 - 47875% NAE 3
WONG Tung Ching 4012 3000000 250 25 2500000 - (2500000) - - - 476 148
%5 10717014 2500000 38 3N - 2500000 - 19,768 - 2519788 NAZ 39
Ll Guangje 2442012 1,500,000 150 N 1,500,000 - - 120% - 151209 NAZ 148
A 107172014 1250000 38 3N - 1250000 - 98%4 - 1,259,894 NAZ 3
LI Sang, Edwend 2042012 1,500,000 150 25l 1,500,000 - - 120% - 151209 NAZ 148
5% 107172014 1250000 38 3N - 1250000 - 9894 - 1,259,894 NAE 3
FU Tingmei 4012 500,000 250 151 500000 - - 4032 - 504032 NAZ 148
Bix
SONG Ming 1440012 500,000 150 N 500,000 - - 4032 - 504032 NAZ 148
Rl
TSANG Yiu Keung 2042012 500,000 150 25l 500,000 - - 4032 - 504032 NAZ 148
883
Erployees A012 26500000 250 151 0850000 - (5166,128) 162892 - 7846764 546 148
] 107172014 40250000 38 3N = 40250000 - 310652 (1,000000) 39560652 NAZ 39
I aggregete 24042017 40000000 150 151 35850000 - (7.666,128) 7567 - 8431439 53 148
ait 107172014 50000,000 38 3N = 50000000 - 367626 (1,000,000) 49387826 NAZ 3
e Upon completion of rights issue on 29 September 2014, the exercise price and the number ke RZF-MFENAZ TN B TRMRE R

of shares to be issued and allotted under the outstanding share options had been adjusted

pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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Share Award Scheme fR 43 8¢ b=t &

On 27 October 201 |, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme under whichthe ~ RZT——F+ A=+t H - KRR AHEMRHD
shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees REETE] o Bt - ARAIRD ([RERG])
(including Directors) of any members of the Group pursuant to the terms of the Scheme AIREBRGD B B 2R A REEREGK
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The Share Award Scheme — HETASEEMKEARINERES (BEE

became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will E) o RN KN BBAER  RIEST
remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e, till 26 October 2021, BIESER] HZARIOF(BIZEZS=—F

TAZ+HRBE)BR

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31 December 2014 are setout ~ RZE—WHFF+ A=+ —HARERREBEX

below: RERONFBOT
Average fair
value per share Number of Number of Number of Number of
(HK$) Awarded Awarded Awarded Awarded

Date of Awarded 8K  Shares granted  Shares vested Shares lapsed Shares unvested
Shares granted FIAEE RHEB FERE KWNEEE ARBRB Vesting date
T LGEE (87)  REBE  RABE  REBE  RRE  SEAS
22/4/2013 297 8,567,000 (5,598,000) (241,000) 2,728,000 30/1172015
9/412014 4.00 9,406,000 (3,146,000) (19,000) 3,129,000 30/1172015

3,112,000 3071172016

238,000 Awarded Shares have lapsed prior to its vesting date as a result of staff HE-_ZEZ—NE+-_A=+—BItEE"
resignation for the year ended 31 December 2014, 238,000 I% £2ENR% 10 Fh AME B B T 57 B B 2R
AR
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Movements of Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 3| BE_Z-—NE+_A=+—HIEFE " Bh

December 2014 are as follows: RETEIE T RBRHEBNT -
Awarded
Awarded Shares at
Shares at 31 December
| January 2014 Granted 2014
R-Z-DNF during  Lapsed during  Vested during RZZE—MNF
Name of participants —HA—H the year the year theyear T=BA=1+—H Vesting date
SRELW NERBR G FRFH FREM FREB NEBRG BERS
Directors
EF
Yim Fung 2,611,000 3,131,000 — (2,803,000) 1,896,000 3071172015
]l 1,043,000 30/1172016
Wong Tung Ching 819,000 885,000 — (836,000) 573,000 30/11/2015
FEF 295,000 30/11/2016
Li Guangjie 194,000 253,000 — (212,000) 151,000 3071172015
&N 84000  30/11/2016
Li Sang, Edward 187,000 211,000 — (195,000) 133,000 30/11/2015
4 70,000 30/1172016
Employees 4,261,000 4,926,000 (238,000) (4,225,000) 3,104,000 3071172015
S 1,620,000 30/1172016
Total 8,072,000 9,406,000 (238,000) (8,271,000) 5,857,000 30/11/2015
a5t 3,112,000 30/11/2016

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the financial BE(n BB st 2l H b s IS RN SRR T 29

statements. Zo
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
year ended 3| December 2014, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not signed
any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had

any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (not being a Director of our Company)
have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
Bl

Approximate percentage of
the Company’s total

number of shares in issue

Number of shares EERRFCBRITROEEH

RH#E BABES T
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholders positions positions positions positions
RRERB rRE RE RE KB
Shanghai International Group HEBRRER
Co., Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 1,504,101,600 Nil & 66.15% Nil£E
Guotai Junan Securities BIRELEHFR D
Co. Ltd (Note) ARAR (M) 1,504,101,600 Nil £ 66.15% Nil £
Guotai Junan Financial BRELSRER
Holdings Limited (Note) AR AR (HE) 1,504,101,600 Nil £ 66.15% Nil &
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited EREBELERER AR 1,504,101,600 Nil £ 66.15% Nil £

Note: Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Guotai Junan
Securities Co,, Ltd is a controlled corporation of Shanghai International Group Co,, Ltd.
Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd and
Shanghai International Group Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of

the Company as Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company has not been notified
by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the

Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Cooperation Agreement for China B shares dealing and broking

On 17 June 2010, a cooperation agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan") (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China
B share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its
customers to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using
its China B shares trading platform. As the cooperation agreement expired on 31
December 2012, the parties entered into a renewed cooperation agreement on 31
December 2012 to continue the transaction contemplated under the agreement
for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the
proposed annual amount of commission payable by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan for the 3 years ended 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015 should not exceed HK$7.2 million. The total commission paid to Guotai
Junan for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$2.8 million
which is also set out in Note 37a(i) to the financial statements on pages 183 to 188

of this annual report.
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Consultancy Service Agreement

On 17 June 2010, a service agreement was entered into between Guotai Junan
(Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai Junan
Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited (which was subsequently amended
by two supplemental agreements dated 19 April 2011 and 31 December 2012
respectively) whereby Guotai Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co,, Limited
would provide consultancy services relating to project management and economic
information as well as marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited.
As the service agreement expired on 31 December 2012, the parties entered into
a renewed service agreement on 31 December 2012 to continue the transaction
contemplated under such agreement for 3 years. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014
and 2015, the proposed annual consultancy fee payable by Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited to Guotai Junan (Shenzhen) Co., Limited in connection with the
services provided under the renewed service agreement would be no more than
HK$ 15 million. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
HK$12.9 million which is also set out in Note 37a(ii) to the financial statements on

pages 183 to 188 of this annual report.
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Investment Advisory Agreement and Client Agreement

On Il August 2010, an advisory agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager of a
Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII) collective investment plan (the
"QDII Scheme”), namely BIRE LB BB L5 A EEERTE| (Guotai Junan
Jun Fu Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan), which was amended by two
supplemental agreements dated 27 September 2011 and 31 December 2012
respectively). Under the advisory agreement, Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited
was appointed as an investment advisor of the QDII Scheme and be entitled to

advisory fee.

On 15 September 2010, a client agreement was entered into between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan, the investment manager
of the QDII Scheme, which was amended by two supplemental agreements on 27
September 201 | and 31 December 2012 respectively. Under the client agreement,
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage

services to the QDI Scheme and be entitled to commission income.

On 25 September 2010, the relevant parties entered into agreements under
which all rights and obligations of Guotai Junan as the investment manager of the
QDII Scheme have been transferred to HERRE LHE A EESIEGR AR
(Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets Management Limited), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Guotai Junan.
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As the above-mentioned agreements expired on 31 December 2012, the parties R EABER S —ZF+=A
entered into renewed agreements on 31 December 2012 to continue the =t—BER FTOAR_ZT—_F
transactions contemplated under such agreements for 3 years. As disclosed in TZ A=+ —BEBENEEE AR
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, for each of the years ended 31 BHEERS  RE=F FHLBHREZ
December 2013, 2014 and 2015, the proposed annual fees payable by the QDII E——F+ZA=+—-B2ZRARRMHF
Scheme to Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong R BHE-Z—=F —Z—NF
Kong) Limited under the renewed agreements would be no more than HK$4.5 FZE-—RFE+ZA=+—HLEEEF
million. The total fees paid by the QDII Scheme for the year ended 31 December B QDI EIRBE BERENEEE
2014 was approximately HK$330,000 which are also set out in Note 37a(v) to the ZEEER(DM)ERRANERER
financial statements on pages 183 to 188 of this annual report. ER(EBEB)ERRAMNBAREFE L

PR #8184,500,0008 7L - BEZFT—N
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B ERY /3300008 e
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Service Agreement

On | July 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
entered into a Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2012)
under which Guotai Junan will provide securities investment consultancy services to
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, including but not limited to research
reports, market news and updates and commentaries, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited will pay service fee to Guotai Junan quarterly based on the actual
amount of services Guotai Junan has provided during the quarter. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 31 December 2012, the estimated maximum amount
of service fee under the Securities Investment Consultancy Service Agreement
would not exceed RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,750,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2013, RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,625,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,500,000) for the year ended 31 December
2015 respectively. There was no service fee incurred by the Group for the year

ended 31 December 2014,
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Client Agreements

On 9 August 2012, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (the Company's
intermediate holding company) and Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
have entered into two Client Agreements for futures trading on the same terms
(which were subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 31
December 2012), pursuant to which Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
maintained two futures trading accounts at Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong)
Limited for futures trading in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars respectively, Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide brokerage services to Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The commission income charged by Guotai
Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited would be based on the market rate, i.e. price
receivable from independent third parties for the similar services under ordinary
commercial transactions, and the commission is payable on the settlement day

under the relevant market practice.

On | November 2012, Guotai Junan and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited have entered into a Client Agreement for securities trading (which was
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement dated 3| December 2012),
pursuant to which Guotai Junan maintained an account at Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited for securities trading, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited agreed to provide securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan. The
commission income charged by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would
be based on the market rate, i.e. price receivable from independent third parties for
the similar services under ordinary commercial transactions, and the commission is

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practice.
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On 4 June 2014, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited have entered into two Client Agreements (the “New Client
Agreements”) for securities trading, pursuant to which Guotai Junan Financial
Holdings Limited opened and maintained two securities trading accounts at Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited for its equity trading and fixed income
products trading respectively. Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed
to provide securities brokerage services to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited.
The commission income charged by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
would be based on the prevailing market rate, i.e. price receivable from independent
third parties for similar services under ordinary commercial transactions, and the

commission is payable on the settlement day a s a market practice.

On 25 June 2014, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited entered into a supplemental agreement in order to
regulate, among the other matters, the transaction contemplated under the New
Client Agreements. Under the supplemental agreement, Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited agreed to continue to provide securities brokerage services
to Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and would continue to receive the
prescribed commission income from Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited. The
expiry date of the New Client Agreements has been amended to 31 December
2015. Upon expiry, the New Client Agreements will, subject to compliance with
the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and agreement of the parties,
be renewed for a further term of three years. For each of the two years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015, the estimated annual cap amount of commission

income under the New Client Agreements will be HK$30 million.

66 GUOTAIJUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report

R-T-NFERANR  BHRELTH
EREBRLAABEFELESFFE)
ARAREAIVMNBEBESFI AN E
FRHPEPHAE(HRIEFPHE
) BUHEREReRERERAA
REEFLETREZEMR S 2D HIRE
FEREF(BR)ARDARLLER
MEXHES  MAZELES(FE)
ARAAAEANEZER S REKEAR
RAREEFELRE - BRERES
(BB)ERRANBNAEUATIZE
MEEREE  HEARBERZEN
TRBLE =T RERBREEKNE
e YRBEEBHSENREER M
N

R-ZZ-—MESA-+HAB BREL
ERERERAAEBARELRER (B
BIERARG U —HHRHE B
REEPORE)NRITEFPBAEET
RETNRS - REBAHE  BHRE
ZEF(BB)ERAAFAEEEMER
EReREREBRRAIREELFLCLRK
B TEEKRREZERMERAERA
AEGTABEEA - FETEPHE
ENERBHEBITAS R+
A=Z+t—R - -RERE  FRITZTFH
HEEET ETHRBEBRTE RETL
FRENAR T TE-—SBEIT=F -
BE-_TNER-ZT—RF+=A
ST-BLEESFE  BANEIELH
FZENREUAFELREEHS AT
HBBIBEET



As the transactions under the above-mentioned Client Agreements were all related
to the Group's provision of brokerage services to its controlling shareholder,
the transactions would need to be aggregated pursuant to the Listing Rules. As
disclosed in the announcement dated 26 June 2014, the aggregate proposed annual
caps for the transactions under the above-mentioned Client Agreements would be
HK$47 million for each of the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.

The commission earned by the Group from Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited
and Guotai Junan were HK$ 1,216,000 and HK$353,000 which also set out in Note
37(vi) and (vii) to the financial statement on pages 183 to 188 of this annual report
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph [4A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Review of
Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor's letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and
with reference to PN740 that the transactions:

() have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) arein accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(if)  have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the announcement dated
31 December 2012 and 26 June 2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Guotai Junan Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited (as bond issuer) and Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (as joint global coordinator, joint bookrunner and joint
lead manager) entered into a subscription agreement on |5 May 2014, under which
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to, on a best efforts basis, procure
subscribers to subscribe and pay for the bonds issued by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings
(BVI) Limited for a commission income. On 22 May 2014, the two parties further
entered into a letter agreement and agreed that the commission income in relation to
the services provided by Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited under the above-
mentioned subscription agreement should be US$564,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,373,000). Guotai Junan Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited is an indirect subsidiary
of Guotai Junan, the controlling shareholder of the Company and accordingly, Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited is a connected person of the Company and the
transaction contemplated under the subscription agreement and the letter agreement
constitutes connected transaction of the Company. The Group's gain from the transaction
was US$564,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,373,000) which is also set out in
Note 37a(xiii) to the financial statements on pages 183 to 188 of this annual report.
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Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (as purchaser) has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement dated 28 November 2014 with Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited (as vendor), under which the purchaser purchased bonds issued by Binhai
Investment Company Limited and Gemdale International Holding Limited respectively
for a total cash consideration of RMB54,819,678.29 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,500,000). As Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited is a controlling shareholder of
the Company and therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
the transaction constituted a connected transaction of the Company. The gain from the
transaction was RMB357,800 (equivalent to approximately HK$454,000) which is also set

out in Note 37(xv) to the financial statements on pages 183 to 188 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 29 January 2014, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with certain financial institutions (as lenders) in respect of a revolving loan
facility and a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of HK$3.3 billion for a term of 3
years. Under the Facility Agreement, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, does not, or ceases to directly or indirectly own,
legally and beneficially, at least 51% of the share capital of the Company. In case of an
event of default, lenders may, by notice to borrower: (i) cancel all or part of the loan; and/
or (i) declare all or part of the loan, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts
accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreement be immediately due and payable;

and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loan become payable on demand.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2014, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to compete,

either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business.
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Report of the Directors
B

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total number of issued shares was held by

the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages |4 to 27 of this report.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young who will retire and being
eligible and offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company to be held on 14 May 2015.

By order of the Board
Dr. Yim Fung, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B EETRIER S

Ernst & Young RAGHRIEH
22/F, CITIC Tower EAPRAEBIN
| Tim Mei Avenue RiEKENE

Central, Hong Kong

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on
pages 73 to 216, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 3|1 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 80 of Schedule |1 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
By E AR E

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

5 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEEBRER

Year ended 31 December 2014
B2 -F-WF+-A=1—HIFE

Notes 2014 2013
M =B-mE —T-=F%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Revenue Hegs 5 1,656,582 1,133,956
Other income Hith g A 6 4,459 5412
Revenue and other income Yogs R E AU A 1,661,041 ,139,368
Staff costs BIMAK 7 (368,622) (267441)
Commission to account executives XPXEMAE (68,477) (62,697)
Other commission expenses Hife (33,747) (32,170)
Performance fee expenses REBY N (2,037) (6,261)
Depreciation e (23,643) (26,049)
(Impairment charge on)/write back of loans and LTEPNER BN
advances to customers ORifE) /e 16 (92) 14

Impairment charge on accounts receivable FENR IR 17(a) (2,750) (222)
Other operating expenses Hi g2 (139,079) (101,738)
Operating profit Sl 1,022,594 642,804
Finance costs BE KA 7 (93,378) (23278)
Profit before tax BR % A Al 7 929,216 619,526
Income tax expense PrET 8 (127,301) (81,768)
Profit for the year FREF 801,915 537,758
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREA 2 FE Mz @ IIRFIE — —
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHEKHLHE 801,915 537,758
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SmEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-—F—E+—A=1—HIFE

Notes 2014 2013
i =B-DmFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  JE{GF G A R 2 H R85
attributable to:
Owners of the parent BARHAA 799,791 536,398
Non-controlling interests IR o 2,124 1,360
801,915 537,758
(Restated)
(KES)
Earnings per share attributable to ERRRRES
ordinary equity holders of the parent BREF
— Basic (in HK cents) —BEAR(LABAILE) 10(a) 417 3.1
— Diluted (in HK cents) —BE(LABILE) 10(b) 41.1 309

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 9 to the ~ FABEN REEKR EMFERMBHREM T

financial statements. HIEE o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

As at 3/ December 2014
R-FE—MFEF=F=1—H

Notes 2014 2013
fsx =B-@mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BEREE Il 513,503 413,440
Investment properties REME 12 — 105,599
Intangible assets R EE 13 2,823 2,823
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 15 24 —
Other assets Hih& 14 5,151 3230
Total non-current assets kRBEELR 521,501 525,092

Current assets REBEE

Loans and advances to customers BYRPHERKBR 16 9,099,164 6,005,392
Accounts receivable FEW IR |7 1,001,103 998,881
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BARE - e REMEKE 18 128,852 21,341
Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss ~ RAFEFABRENSHEE 19 1,353,089 983717
Derivative financial instruments PTEERIA 20 1,766 —
Tax recoverable AR EIRRIE 211 182
Client trust bank balances RPERRITAR 9,009,909 7,966,841
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReFEY 21 889,286 485,295
Total current assets RBEEAR 21,483,380 16461649
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRE

As at 3/ December 2014
REF-mFE+=A=1—H

Notes 2014 2013
e  =B-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Current liabilities RBAE

Accounts payable FERTIE 23 (10,004,468)  (9,120,380)
Other payables and accrued liabilities H 5B R EET50R 24 (196,665) (139,029)
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA 20 (1,766) =
Bank borrowings FITER 25 (3,472,719)  (3386,113)
Debit securities in issue BRETNERES 26 (171,123) (324,706)
Tax payable FEfRHiE (69,718) (34,864)
Total current liabilities RBAEAR (13,916,459)  (13,005,092)
Net current assets RBEERE 7,566,921 3,456,557
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBEE 8,088,422 3,981,649

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIE K 25 (990,000) —
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR 5 (33,208) (34332)
(1,023,208) (34,332
Net assets BEFE 7,065,214 3947317
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

As at 3/ December 2014
R-FE—MFEF=F=1—H

Notes 2014 2013
i —B-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET
Equity B
Nominal value of share capital BRAEE 27 — 172,765
Share premium Bdn i (& 27 — 2,959,240
Share capital BRI 27 5,852,194 3,132,005
Other reserve Hinf#RE 31(a) (1,236,460)  (1,236,460)
Share-based compensation reserve PARR D RETER E A
— Share option reserve —BREFEE 28 63,696 39,998
— Share award reserve — M1 R EN 29 13,884 9,054
Shares held under the share award scheme RIBMR 1 BB 2l A H AR D 30 (102,897) (56,702)
Proposed final dividend &N ] 9 292,434 222,209
Retained profits RE A 2,172,562 1,829,536
Equity attributable to owners of the parent (SYNSIE PPNy £ 7,055,413 3939,640
Non-controlling interests R ER 9,801 7,677
Total equity ERAH 7,065,214 3947317
Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
gt FhERE
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

MBIk DL

As at 3/ December 2014
REF-mFE+=A=1—H

Notes 2014 2013
BT —E-NE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TAT

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries RETBAARE 2 3,344,165 1,316,166

Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 3,344,165 1,316,166

Current assets RBEE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRRE - e REMEKKE 18 4,299 2,737

Due from a subsidiary FERPH B R RIFRIR 2 2,918,447 2,362,863

Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEFED 21 40,497 205

Total current assets RBEERR 2,963,243 2,366,805

Current liabilities REAE

Accrued liabilities FEET IR 24 (849) (891)
Debit securities in issue BRETEEES 26 (171,123) (324,706)
Total current liabilities RBAEAR (171,972) (325,597)
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,791,271 2,041,208

Total assets less current liabilities and net assets BEERNGBDEEREERE 6,135,436 3,357,374
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Statement of Financial Position

MR DL

As at 3/ December 2014
R-FE—MFEF=F=1—H

Notes 2014 2013
Pl —B-mE —T-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Equity B
Nominal value of share capital BRAEE 27 — 172,765
Share premium B0 (B 27 = 2,956,256
Share capital BRI 27 5,849,210 3,129,021
Share-based compensation reserve PARR R AL R (B A 1
— Share option reserve —BRERE 28 63,696 39998
— Share award reserve — R tn 2B 29 13,884 9,054
Shares held under the share award scheme R 0 2B =1 815 A BV AR 7 30 (102,897) (56,702)
Proposed final dividend TN ) 9 292,434 222,209
Retained profits REEH 31(b) 19,109 13,794
Total equity ERAH 6,135,436 3,357,374
Dr YIM Fung Mr Li Sang, Edward
EigEt FhESKE
Director Director
EZ EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERREBR

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-—F—E+—A=1—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARLER

Share
capital
Rx
HK$'000
TR

Share
option
reserve
BRE
it
HK$'000
TR

Shares held

under the

Share  share award
award  scheme
reserve  REMA
R REHE
RBRE BENRG
HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TiEx

Proposed

dividend

BB
HK$'000

Fin

Total
equity
REAH
HK$'000
TEn

Balance at | January 2014

Transfer on 3 March 2014
(Note 27)

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Shares issued upon placement
of shares (Note 27)

Recognition of equity-settled share-

based payments (Notes 28 and 29)

Purchases of shares held under the
share award scheme (Note 30)

Vesting of shares for the share
award scheme (Notes 29 and 30)

Shares issued upon exercise of share
options under the share
option scheme (Note 28)

Shares isstied upon nghts issue

Final dividend paid for 2013
(Note 9)

Intenim dividend paid for 2014
(Note 9)

Proposed final dividend for 2014
(Note 9)

RZZ-IF
—F— A&
RZZ-ME=A=H
Ba ()
EnzENEEE

REERR MR THREG
(Frsx27)
RN RN
AR BERERA
(FtE28 R 29)
BEREROREEM
BERRB(HE0)
RGeS HE G
(FitzE 29 ;2 30)
RERMR IR 21 T ABRRRIE
ROEMETHRG
(FzE20)
RitRmETHRG
SR-B-=EKHkE
(Firzk9
TH-F-MERERE
(BzE9)
HE-T-NERMES
(BizE9)

N
J

172,765

2,959,240

687,223

28,102
2,004,864

39,998

32,685

(6.987)

9054 (5670)

31,052 =

(66968)

(2620) 20673

222,209

20,800

)

430

(4279%)

292434

3947317

801,915

687,223

63,737

(66368)

19,115
2,004,864

(24279%)

(149293)

Balance at 3| December 2014

R-ZZ-m&
TZA=T-RMLH

5852,194

63,696

13884 (102897)

292,434

7,065,214

GUQOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE_F-Ef-H=1+—HAIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BRARAAEE RS

Shares held
under the
share
Share Share award Non-
option award  scheme controlling
Share Share Other  resee  resene  MREMRA  Proposed  Retained interests Total
capital  premium resene BRI RIA  REErE diidend profits Totdl ik equity
R ROEE EfbRRE s ZBREE RANRD SRR REEN &t B EuER
HK$000  HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKFOO0  HKPOOO  HKE000  HKF000  HKFOOO  HK$000
Thr Tt TEr Ter TEr Texr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx  TEn
Balance at | January 2013 RZE-=E
—A—RHk&e 164000 2771707 (1236460) 33330 570 (28833) 113882 1570102 3393448 6317 3399765
Total comprehensive income ERZERELE
for the year = = = = = = —  5363%  5363% 1360 537758
Shares issued upon placement REERRMmE TR
of shares (Note 27) (F27) 8500 178264 = = = = 5950 (5950) 186,764 — 186764
Recognition of equity-settled share- TR Bzt Z AR A&
based payments (Notes 28.and 29)  ZREAIIF
(W28 R29) = = — 95T W03 = = - 994 - 94
Purchase of shares held under EERERORE:EM
the share award scheme FEMRA(E30)
(Note 30) = = = = - (@24 (184) 184 (42447) - (24
Vesting of shares for the share et
award scheme (Note 9and30)  (HfiF29 %30) = = = —  (17003) 14578 = 2425 = = =
Shares issued upon exercise of R RIE: T 21 T iR 2
shares option under the share ErEmEmnRn
option scherne (Note 29) (P29) 265 9,269 - (9 - - 8l @) 6605 — 6,625
Final dividend paid for 2012 SRN-E-—ERHRE - — - - - - (11975) —  (11979) — (11979)
Interim dividend paid for 2013 XAZE-=FhHRE
(Note'9) (Riz9) = = = — — — — B3 613 - (BI3)
Proposed final dividend for 2013 BR=E—=ERERE
(Note9) i) = = = = - — M9 (202209 - - —
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=F-=%1+-A
=+—REER 172765 2959240 (1236460) 39998 9054 (56702) 222209 1829536 3939640 7611 39471317
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\ é }Er ﬁ \;ﬁ: % %

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-—F—E+—A=1—HIFE

Notes 2014 2013
Pt &£ —B-mE —T-Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETBMAREREFHE 35 (2,753,178)  (2,570,405)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELIRE || (18,112) (6935)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HMENE  BFE RRBMEFEHE
plant and equipment 13 =
Net cash flows used in investing activities REERHMAREREFHE (18,099) (6,935)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRERE
Net proceeds from bank loans RITERMBHEEE 1,076,606 2,646,293
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities BIRBEFENE 439,262 817,717
Repayment of debt securities EBEEBKES (592,845) (579011)
Decrease in subscription monies received in advance T8 Ui B AR — (186,798)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares FECE MR 1D &1 TR G S B R E
upon placement of shares 27 687,223 186,764
Net proceeds from right issue HRAMG IR FE 27 2,004,864 —
Net proceeds from issuance of shares R R TR M &1
upon exercise of share options PG IE % 28 19,115 6,625
Dividend paid to shareholders FRBRERE (392,089) (171,062)
Purchase of shares held under BERERN REEIMEFE NN
the share award scheme 30 (66,868) (42,447)
Net cash flows from financing activities REZBRENEFHE 3,175,268 2,678,08|
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEMEMFE 403,991 100,741
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FPNReRBREEEY 485,295 384,554
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERRAERREEEY 889,286 485295
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents ~ BRERFSEEYNEHD N
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHER 2 658,069 378,152
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of B4R E| 2 BB = 1@ A /)
less than three months when acquired AEHE HER 21 231,217 107,143
889,286 485,295
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company) was incorporated on
8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange") on 8 July 2010. The registered
office address of the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza,
181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in dealing and broking, loans
and financing activities, corporate finance, asset management, fixed income business

and investment holding.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan") incorporated in the

People’s Republic of China, respectively.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 5 March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial statements, which for
this financial period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule || to that Ordinance. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments

which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

2.1

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

—RER
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e RARAMPEEEN I AR EE
EREH I8 LT EZEETE -
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TERE BEEE ETWSERK
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RAEEE
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FERAMBREER BB ER
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 3| December 2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policies for subsidiaries below. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related

assets or liabilities.
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31 December 2014
—F-mEfA=1-A
22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 EHHREDREE
The Group has adopted the following revised standards and new interpretation for AEEDRAFENYEHRKE NER
the first time for the current year's financial statements. AT 2 BB TRER R T2 o
Standard Content
%8 AR

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments

BEMBREREAE 105 -

BRMBHREER
F12RRERER
AR 27 %%
(=)
HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments
EnezEL|

% 36 FRAER]
HKAS 39 Amendments

S /\; /EHIJ
F 39 SRH0ERT
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
i§ﬁ§WWﬁ$¢%%
Be)RnBF%®
HKFRS 2 Amendment
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
—T-2FR-F-—_F
BHFEIENES
B & 5 R
F2ROER]

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 1) — Investment Entities

BREMBREERSE 105 BEMBMEERNSE 12K RBBGERE 275
(Z2——F)NEI] - REEE

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

BRGHEMNENRNER : 2HIA - 25/-2HEERZBE EHHH

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

BR QT ERE 6 RNER S 2 BEEA LR T HFHKE

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Novation of Derivatives

and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

BRGTEMNEINRNEITLHILE - BB Rt E—1TETANTERE B 1 &ML

Levies

BE
Amendment to HKFRS 2 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle — Definition of Vesting

Condition*

—E-ZEE-T-_FRHFERENTBNHREERNE LRNER] —FB A ARE (¥

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF
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31 December 2014
ZE-mFEF=ZA=+—H
22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 22 EHBREHREES)
(continued)
Standard Content
28| AFS
HKFRS 3 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 3 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle — Accounting for Contingent
included in Annual Consideration in a Business Combination*
Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle

“E-TEE-T--F —E-THEE T FRUFEIENTEMBEREENE IRMET] - RHAHF AN
BHREEUENTE REHALR (¥)

P REER

F 3BT

HKFRS I3 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 13 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle — Short-term Receivables
included in Annual and Payables

Improvements

2010-2012 Cycle
“E-TFE-T-—F “T-THEE-T-_FRNFENENTENMBRERERE 3RNE] - LHEKIERENTE
BHFEIENES

RS A

F I3RAER]
HKFRS | Amendment Amendment to HKFRS | included in Annual Improvements 201 1-2013 Cycle — Meaning of
included in Annual Effective HKFRSs

Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle
“E—FE-T-=F “T—HE_T--FRRFENENTEVBREERNE | RNER - FUETEYBFHE
BHREEMENTR EA) 5%

P RS ER

F | FEEET

* Effective from | July 2014 * BE-Z—NF+A—HBEMR
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
Except for the amendment to HKFRS | which is only relevant to an entity's first
HKFRS financial statements, the nature and the impact of each amendment and

interpretation is described below:

J Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (201 1) — /nvestment

Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that
meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are required
to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (201 1). The amendments to HKFRS |2 also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Company does not qualify as an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 0.

J Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off" for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems)
which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The

amendments have no material financial impact on the Group.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)
. Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure requirement
made by HKFRS I3 on the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments require the disclosure of
the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which
an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the reporting
period, and expand the disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their recoverable amounts are
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments have had no

impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge

Accounting

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the requirement
of discontinuing hedge accounting in situations where over-the-counter
derivatives designated in hedging relationships are directly or indirectly,
novated to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations,
or the introduction of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following criteria must be met: (i)
the novations must arises as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to the hedging instrument
agree that one or more clearing counterparties replace their original
counterparty to become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and (iii)
the novations do not result in changes to the terms of the original derivative
other than changes directly attributable to the change in counterparty to
achieve clearing. The amendments have had no impact on the Group as it

does not apply hedge accounting.
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31 December 2014
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when
the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation,
occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that a levy liability is accrued
progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period of
time, in accordance with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered
upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no
liability should be recognised before the specified minimum threshold is

reached. The interpretation has had no impact on the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 2 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle — Definition of Vesting Condition

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of
performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including (i)
a performance condition must contain a service condition; (ii) a performance
target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a
performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or
to those of another entity in the same group; (iv) a performance condition
may be a market or non-market condition; and (v) if the counterparty,
regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting period,
the service condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no impact on

the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 3 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012

Cycle — Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business Combination

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent consideration
arrangements arising from a business combination that are not classified as
equity should be subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39. The

amendment has had no impact on the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 13 included in Annual Improvements 2010-2012
Cycle — Short-term Receivables and Fayables

The HKFRS |3 Amendment clarifies that short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The amendment has had no impact on

the Group.
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PSRRI

31 December 2014
= L=l
2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 2.3 HAREANFITIRLETETBHT
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES REZBUREBATGKEETH
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED FHRERTE
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been REBBARZEMNERRDPERUT
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. BEMEERERB I RCETT RS
PBIRELEA -
Effective for financial
Standard/ years beginning on/after
interpretation Content RT5IBHHz%&
A RE AR RRNMRFEEN
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments | January 2018
BREUBREENEIR 2HIA “F-\f—-f-H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate | January 2016
and HKAS 28 (2011) or Joint Venture —Z-R"¥—-H—-H
B BREER REEZHEABEAE BT R FNEEL EHALE

FI0HREEADH
R 285 (BT &)

(ZF—%)
Amendments to HKFRS | | Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations | January 2016
BB RS ER WEEERBR BB )% “Z-R"¥-H-H
ERIACCHIRS)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts | January 2016
BRMBRERRE 4% HEELKE “2-"¥-A-H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers | January 2017
BREMBRERRE 5% EPAANKE —F—+t¥—H-H
Amendments to HKAS |6 Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation | January 2016
and HKAS 38 BB ERBHNTRZ % —F-A"§¥-A-H

BREEAF 165 R
BREG AR 385
SCHEN)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants | January 2016
and HKAS 41

BREHENE 16K RF LELEY “F-7"¥-A-H
B ERE 41 5
SCHES)
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-mEL A=t A
NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 23 EARANHITREETEENE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES RELAUREBARGHETH
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued) FHRERTEZ)
Effective for financial
Standard/ years beginning on/after
interpretation Content RT5IBHH 2%
A RE AR RRNPREEER
Amendments to HKAS |9 Defined Benefit Plants: Fants: Employee Contributions | July 2014
Bl ERE TS BRI “T-MFELA-R
F 19 (BFT )
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements | January 2016
011) —T-RF-A—H

BAGEAE 275
(BRIR)(ZF——%F)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
—E-TFEE_T——F

BHINF R

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
—F—HE-%-=F

BHIN R

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle
—E-CFE-T-MEF

B F R

BUHEHRX O E %

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs | July 2014
“Z-Mm¥tA-H
ZREENFHREEREFTT)

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs | July 2014
SEE B HHEER (BFTE) —T-mE+A—H
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs | January 2016
SREEHBHEER (BFTE) —T-R"¥-A—H

W4 FH BREREEERERA27 93



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will come into operation as from the Company's
first financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358
of that Ordinance, which will be the year ending 31 December 2015. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in
the period initial application of Part 9 of the Ordinance. So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily affect the presentation and

disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group s as follows:
. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2018.
The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on
the classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer the implementation

date of the standard.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEWV DISCLOSURE 2.3
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

HARRANH T REBTERRE
REEAURE R D ARGIAET
FBBERE D)

HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgments
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on
| January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon

adoption.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKASI6
and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattem or economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the asset is part) rather than
the economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group upon adoption on | January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of

depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-20/2 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20/0-2012 Cycle issued in January
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from | January 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Detalils of the

amendments are as follows:

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a management entity (i.e.,
an entity that provides key management personnel services) is a related
party subject to related party disclosure requirements. In addition, an entity
that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred

for management services.
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31 December 2014
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE 23 EEREMNFITRLETEETE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES REEAURBEEBLNTRHETH
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued) FHRERTEZ)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must disclose the
judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in
HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics used to assess whether
the segments are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation
of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the

reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20/ 1-2013 Cycle issued in January
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from | January 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the

amendments are as follows:

HKFRS |3 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the portfolio exception in
HKFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities,
but also to other contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as
applicable. The amendment is to be applied prospectively from the beginning

of the annual period in which HKFRS |3 was initially applied.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in October
2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from | January 2016. None of the amendments are

expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the

amendments are as follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Clarifies that the disclosures in

respect of the offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities in HKFRS 7
are not required in the condensed interim financial statements, except where
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information reported

in the most recent annual report, in which case the disclosures should be

included in the condensed interim financial statements.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEWV DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle (continued)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: Clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds used for discounting the post-employment benefit
obligation for defined benefit plans is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality

corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever
they are included within the interim financial report. The amendment also
specifies that the information within the interim financial report must be
available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and

at the same time.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, debt investments and
equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or

liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level I — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss

is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FEEHBEMES)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation ME - BERRERTE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such

parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of

the remaining
lease term and
the useful life

Leasehold land under finance lease of the building

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Fumiture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation (refer to the accounting policy for “Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation”) and any impairment losses.

An item of investment property and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net

sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

As the Group uses the cost model to measure its investment properties, transfers
between investment property and owner-occupied property do not change the
carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of

that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible

asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) and The
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from

indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of these leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity investments.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,

except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective

hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement
of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest eamed on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the

criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows: (continued)
. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
revenue in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in

profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

110 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2014 Annual Report

24 FEEHBEBESL)

RIEBAEHEEZ)

s ARECERBAERBRERE
MERN ABREREETF %
B EEEXTROER THER
BORERELHNTE=T
R@QAKEEBRZEENEX
7B K IR - % (b) AR BB E
ERTERBLZEENBAND
R & ER - ECEEEENE
-

HARECERENNEERSRERN
BNAEFTVBFRH HEdEER
ERMERE LREEEMAENER
kE® SEMEEZINEREZEE
BAENRREO® TEERZEE
Mg AASEREREL2EZE
ENBEARERAHEREE - It
R ARETEEAABERE
ERAENARAENASERENE
BRI REHRAEENE -



24

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, defauft or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carnied at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all

collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

operating expenses in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments include foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swaps. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are

subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value

of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Whilst the Group enters into derivative contract for trading purpose or to provide
economic hedges under the Group's risk management framework, it does not apply

hedge accounting.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, financial
liabilities held for trading, bank borrowings and debt securities in issue. The Group

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified

at inception and recognised initially at fair value.
. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A
financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is carried at fair value and
any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income

statement.

. Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4 EE%E‘#E&%HE(@
Derecognition of financial liabilities RIEEILHER

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or

to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuftaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and

the consideration is recognised in equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions. The
Group has classified the clients’ monies as client trust bank balances under the
current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group is
allowed to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in the
current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap
571) and the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is

not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the Group provides
dealing and broking and asset management services of which the Group acts in
a fiduciary capacity and results in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of its
customers. These assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are not included
in these financial statements as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets

and its gains or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FESHBEEHRZE®)

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock Exchange,
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be held on a long-term basis

and are stated at cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

2.4

V5% Rk By RE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

TREHRRBEE)
Fiesi(&)

FAERRHERZRGSHADETHE
BfE - A TRERAISH :

o FREBAHNIZTENIGHERR
EREEFABEMELNELHIE
85 MEBRIUETENRE
AMERRERKTE R

o HRPRRHBARMREMNER
RERZRME - ROLREZEN
By ) AT DA - MBS EBR A AL
FEER RFRELD -

HRABA THRMNEREE  ARK
@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ*ﬁﬁ
REEHBBE - HRA B HIRERM
EMANEEZSAHRE R ZE - &
AARPARBERRADAREEE
BIEEMBBEA AR EATE
AENE

o FEBAHNIZPNIHEREE
FEEMELTHRE K ZROE
THERE - MAMIZH G0
M ERTBDHERRTE R

o HRFRRMBLRRMRENN
RERZREME AFHERER
RATRER AT R R B D - AR ARE
R RS A A A R B S L
R JERDETHAEE -

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF

117



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FEEHBEBESL)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

() commission income from securities and futures dealing and broking, on the

transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

(i) net income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions, on the contract

date;

(if)  commission income from provision of wealth management services, on an

accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements;

(iv)  commission income from underwriting/placing/sub-underwriting in securities,
on execution of each significant act based on the terms of underlying

agreements and mandates;

(v)  management, consultancy, financial advisory fees and handling income, when

the services have been rendered;
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi)

(vi)

(il

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive payment has been

established;

performance fees, on the day of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the relevant performance period,
taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the investment

funds and managed accounts

information services income, when the services have been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease term; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
those held for trading, include realised gains/losses which are recognised on
the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are recognised in the period in which

they arise.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

@

®)

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when

contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on an
approved formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

©

Share-based payments

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme for the
purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in the “share award reserve” and “share option reserve” under
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all

other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

©

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value
of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating to the

Company's own shares held under the Company's share award scheme, are

classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section

of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by

the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the

Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority to declare

interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. Cash collateral advanced or
received is recorded as an asset or a liability. Fees received or paid in connection
with securities borrowing and lending is recorded as handling income or handling

charge, respectively.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
or
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

and

(vii)  a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income and
other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the

determination is made.
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. There is
no carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses as at 3|
December 2014 (2013: HK$4.6 million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2014 was approximately HKS$ I 1.7 million (2013: HK$9.0 million).

Further details are contained in note |5 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable
to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status
of borrowers in the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying value of loans and receivables and thus the
impairment charge in the period in which the estimate is changed. Further details

are contained in notes |6 and 17 to the financial statements.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or
loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by using external
valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm'’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants. Changes
in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect the reported fair value
of these financial assets. Further details are contained in notes |9 and 38 to the

financial statements.
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group's senior executive management and in accordance with
HKFRSs. The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each
of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that offers
services which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the

other operating segments.

In prior year, income arising from placing and underwriting of debt securities
was reported under the segment of corporate finance and income arising from
trading and market making of debt securities was reported under the segment of
investment holding. These items have been reported under a new segment “Fixed
income business” for the year ended 31 December 2014. Comparative figures have

been restated to conform with current year's presentation.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@)  the dealing and broking segment engages in the provision of securities,
futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking as well as wealth

management services to customers;

(b)  the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory services,

placing and underwriting services of equity securities;

(c)  the asset management segment engages in asset management, including fund

management and the provision of investment advisory services;

(d)  the fixed income business segment engages in the placing, underwriting,

trading and market making of debt securities;

(e)  the loans and financing activities segment engages in the provision of margin
financing to margin customers, initial public offering (“IPO") loans, other

loans to customers and bank deposits;

(f)  the investment holding segment represents dividend or interest income
and gains or losses from listed equity investments, unconsolidated fund

investments and direct investments; and

(g)  the “others” segment mainly represents rental income and the provision of

information channel services.
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-mEL A=t A
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4, HBBESE)
Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices RO 7ENRZ S (INE)I2BEE=
charged to third parties and there was no change in the basis during the years TR EEmMET BEEENESR
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014. —ECERZE--ME+_A=1—
AR SR -
The segment information provided to the management for the reportable segments REE_ZE—=FRrR-_ZF-—WNF+_A
for the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2014 is as follows: =t—HIEFE RMEEERTZRS
HREN D BERWMT -
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-MF+-A=+—HLEFE
Dealing Fixed  Loansand
and income financing
broking ~ Corporate Asset  business activities Investment

EER finance management BE  B¥R  holding  Others Total
B OLXME BEEE LGHEK WETD REXH Eft st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000
Tér THEr TFEx FEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEn

Segment revenue AHUER
and other income: HiA

Seles to external customers HETINIZP 521556 200938 46387 123269 702,560 61872 4459 1,661,04l

Inter-segment sales N EHE - - - - - - - -
Total @t 52155 200938 46387 123269 702,560 61872 4459 1,661,041

Segment results PHEE 200,133 120,793 |5,745 60,638 470035 61,872 — 99216
Income tax expense PEIA (127,301)
Profit for the year ERET 801,915

Other segment information: B EHEH -
Depreciation ik 6,986 4429 1,109 1 875 9,244 - — 23643
Finance costs BERKAR | - — 15,672 77,705 — — 93378
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
“E-AFF=A=1+—H
4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. IB®EE)
Year ended 3| December 2013 (Restated) BZ-_Z-=-f+-A=+—-HLEFE
(RE5)
Dedling Fixed  Loansand
and income financing
broking ~ Corporate Asset  business  activities  Investment
BER finance - management ElE ERR holding Others Total
Big C5BE AERR WaRE RARD RERE i st
HK$000  HKFO00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKFO00  HKF000  HK$O000
TEr TEr  Ter  TEr TR TEr  TER @ TER
Segment revenue PHRER
and other income: EftlA :
Sales to extemal customers HETIDER W07 13980 3568 68593 39794 134834 5412 1139368
Inter-segment sales P AEE = = = = = = = =
Total fa:t 377057 123,980 31,568 68593 397924 134,834 5412 1139368
Segment resus AR 119128 56808 2567 18274 287915 13484 — 61952
Income tax expense FEHRY (81,768)
Profit for the year ERET] 537758

Other segment information: EAEEs :

Depreciation Vil 8662 4589 1248 | 455 10,095 — - 26,049
Finance costs WEMAR 3 Il = 6500 [6,764 = = 23278
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31 December 2014
—E-mEL A=t A
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4, HBBESE)
Geographical information i35 E K
(a)  Revenue and other income from external customers @a) IEEFKz REMYPA
2014 2013
—2-mFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TRT
Hong Kong N 1,528,331 1,030,449
Other countries Hi B R 132,710 108,919
1,661,041 ,139,368

®)

The information of revenue and other income above is based on the

3 s KA A B R TR
location of the markets. B RS o
Non-current assets b) FRBEE

ARERBAOFRBEE(T R
are located in Hong Kong. BIERIEEE )N RERS o

Majority of non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
—F-mEt=fZ4—A
5. REVENUE 5. W
An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turmnover, is as follows: WR(MARNEELEE)NATIT
2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TET
(Restated)
(fe&5))
Dealing and broking; BERREES:
Commission on securities dealing and broking BREENBRENAE 435,037 292,892
Commission on futures dealing and broking HEEERRLENAE 30,395 43,868
Handling income on dealing and broking BERELEHFEBKRA 52,434 36417
Net income on leveraged foreign exchange dealing BRIMNEEE K
and broking G AL N 1,646 3517
Commission on wealth management services B RBEnEE 2,044 363
521,556 377,057
Corporate finance: o
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission REEFOES - 28K
of equities securities N BENRE 131,815 71,070
Consultancy and financial advisory fee income ERRBEEAERA 69,123 52910
200,938 123,980
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31 December 2014
—E-mEL A=t A
REVENUE (continued) 5. WEm#)
2014 2013
—B-mE —2-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
(Restated)
(fE7))
Asset management: BEER :
Management fee income BEERA 43,061 20,858
Performance fee income FRERA 3,326 10,710
46,387 31,568
Fixed income business: ElE s £
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting commission EEBEFOES
of debt securities BEES BHENAE 86,887 25,569
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial FEEESREENATE
assets held for trading (B8),/ W Fea
— Listed securities —EWESH (14,108) 8,106
— Unlisted securities —FEMES (3,043) 16,032
Interest income on financial assets held for trading RIEEERREENTERA
— Listed securities — EWREH 47,169 18221
— Unlisted securities —JF EMES 6,364 665
123,269 68,593
Loans and financing activities: ENERERE
Interest and handling income from margin loans HFRERFBRFEERA 549,716 304,613
Interest and handling income from term loans THEFMERFEERA 60,804 34900
Interest income from IPO loans BRARBEEERTELA 5,308 2225
Interest income from banks and others RITREAFSUA 86,732 52,274
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments REIBRENEMA = 3912
702,560 397924
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e
5. REVENUE (continued) 5. Wk&EE)
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
(Restated)
(Ke=51)
Investment holding: REXH -
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial HIEEESMEENATE
assets held for trading Wigs /(B4R ) %58
— Listed securities — &S 23,574 62,760
— Unlisted securities —FLMES (8,598) 62,762
Net fair value gain on financial assets designated EERRATHEFABEN
at fair value through profit or loss SRBEENLTEKRZFE
— unlisted convertible promissory note —FLEMARRER 33,616 5296
— unlisted unconsolidated fund investments —FLEMEEHESRE 1,339 =
Interest income from unlisted financial assets designated ~ #EEEAFEFTABRRIELTE
at fair value through profit or loss BEMFERA 2,985 2,985
Dividend income from listed equity securities REEE FTRRE S
held for trading HIAR BUA 8,956 1,031
61,872 134,834
1,656,582 [,133956
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAttWA
2014 2013
“E-mFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Rental income L ON 2,962 3956
Information services income BRBUA [,162 1,120
Others Hit 335 336
4,459 5412
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31 December 2014
—E-FEF-HA=1—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NG B WGBTS TR A DR (5T
AN ATEBEREFE :
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Other operating expenses include: HiS &MY B
Auditors” remuneration BERI S
(i) audit services (i) =B R TS 1,591 1,466
(ii) interim review (i) * EAEE] 594 550
(iif) tax and other consultancy services (iif) 475 S EoAth e 75 1,226 328
Foreign exchange differences, net SN Z R 2,455 (3831)
Information services expenses BARB 12,898 12,137
Marketing, advertising and promotion expenses MHHE BEEREEX T 6,036 4859
Professional and consultancy fee EXRHAE 24,465 19951
Repair and maintenance (including system maintenance)  #{E R # & (B 2 Fi4EE) 18,368 12,326
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE « BE RFENKE (8) =
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (Note 34)): B IR (BEEEM< (HFE34))
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o AR, 297,562 234511
Share-based compensation expense PARR 7 R E R E X 1t
— Share option scheme (Note 28) — BB AR AT &I (Ff 5T 28) 32,685 9,577
— Share award scheme (Note 29) — R fn BEEhET & (B 29) 34,568 20,337
Pension scheme contributions BRREFT BT 3,807 3016
368,622 267,441
Finance costs: BB :
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable BERIERNREEEN
within five years fE%ié?ﬂ&Lﬁ 87,120 19,434
Debt securities in issue BETERKE 5,924 3,734
Others Al 334 110
93,378 23,278
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31 December 2014
e A e

8.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

Fremimx
BEBMNEHIREALEEBEENM
ERFRFEHE 65%(=ZF—=
16.5%) Bt o

2014 2013

—E-mE —F-=fF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TRT

Current — Hong Kong BN —BANET

— Charge for the year —FRRAX 130,304 61,492
— Overprovision in prior years —REFEHRERE (1,855) (426)
Deferred (Note |5) ERE(FI5E15) (1,148) 20,702
Total tax charge for the year FARBRX G 127,301 81,768

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the

statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BEBEERE BB ANEMTE 2 M
HERRRERNEAECHEBEERL
HERNT :

2014 2013

—B-mE —T=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TRT

Profit before tax BB A Al 929216 619,526
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) BEEME 165% 5t E WA

(ZF—Z=%: 165%) 153,321 102,222

Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERE (1,855) (426)

Income not subject to tax BERBBA (38,150) (26,703)

Expenses not deductible for tax ARNBF % 13,441 13,139

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses PALAARITIEEE — (6,359)

Tax losses not recognised AERVEER 464 520

Temporary difference not recognised AERERER 80 (625)

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRASEERHXHE 2 HIARX 127,301 81,768
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31 December 2014
—F-mEr=f=+-A
DIVIDENDS 9. RE
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Interim, paid — HK$0.08 (2013: HK$0.03) RH - B -BREBR0.08ET
per ordinary share (Z2—=%F:003%7) 151,344 51,829
Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's R RBAR R R 1R 2
share award scheme BT AR 17 B AR B (2,051) (49¢6)
149,293 51,333
Final, proposed — HK$0.13 (2013: HK$0.13) RE - RS - SREEROI3ET
per ordinary share (ZZ2—=F:0I1387) 295,604 224,595
Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's B BEALR R R 1REDET 2
share award scheme P R A7 B0 AR 8. (3,170) (2,386)
292,434 222,209*
441,727 273,542
*  The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$242,796,000 for the ¥ KAFBRE_T-=FE 2 KHK

year ended 3| December 2013, as further adjusted to include the dividend for

163,310,000 shares issued under the Company's general mandate and share option

scheme amounting to approximately HK$2 1,230,000 but excluded the dividend for

shares held under the Company's share award scheme amounting to approximately
HK$643,000 in respect of 4,946,000 award shares purchased in 2014.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

B 492427960007 70+ H A
BRI AR R —BIRE K B
=t 8] %17 89 163,310,000 A% A% 13 AR 2.
#921,230000% 70 BRI A AR
BRI AN T —NEBAREHE
B 4,946,000 % £ % (7 B 1B B AR B 40
643,000787T ©

F AR RIS BEARR BRI E
ERRBFRE LHE - HAEE -
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY 10.

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

BRAEERRREGERET

(@)  Basic earnings per share @) BREXEF
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company raised approximately HE-_Z—N&E+=-_A=+—H
HK$2,004.9 million by rights issue on the basis of | rights share for every 5 LFE  RRBAREARBRRE
existing shares held by the shareholders of the Company at the rights issue BB SR B D IR IR5.305 T
price of HK$5.30 per share, which represents a discount of 0.67% to the AR B R - BB
prevailing fair value at the date of rights issue of the existing shares. The HREE4920049B 88T
effect of bonus element resulting from the rights issue has been included in %5 30 TR HRERRIES
the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share and the prior period DA E R AR B B A T EST
basic and diluted earnings per share are adjusted in order to provide a #E0.67% ° HREENAIN T E
comparable basis. B ABRERREFRMMNE
g MmBTHRRSRERNRES
AMETHENB W RREML A
AIE LB
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows: BRERBFOTETENAT
2014 2013
—EB-mE —F-=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TEX
(Restated)
(e E7))
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders B A B AR AR SR A5 4 A
of the parent (in HK$000) (AFHTat) 799,791 536,398
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T iR e ke 9 BURBLAR (D
in issue less shares held for the share ;ﬁ@]ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁmﬂﬂﬂ(b{:‘:uﬂ
award scheme (in ‘000) 1,915,874 1,722,226
Basic earmnings per share (in HK cents) BRERRH (VABE) 41.7 311
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the

year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted

average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number

of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings

per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise

or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

BRAAEERBRREGEREN
(&)

(b) BREZRA

BREERN DR AREER
RAANFRRHNGFE - BB
R BENE I E R R
BREABFMRANFADH
TEBREE - WEBRRFEAM
AEEETEBRREREITR
FBRALBREERTRER
TR R BBNAE a2

The calculation of diluted eamings per share is as follows: BREERFNAERENT ¢
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
(Restated)
(&&7)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders BAAIE BRI R AR5
of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFHTat) 799,791 536,398
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EBRERBHNM
in issue less shares held for the share award BEITERREMETHH
scheme used in the basic eamings per Rtk 10 BB 5 Bl A R 1D
share calculation (in ‘000) (BAF3H) 1,915,874 1,722,226
Effect of dilution — weighted average number BErE - TRRNMETIH
of ordinary shares:
Share options under the share option scheme BARETEI T
(in '000) R (AT 5) 20,197 7930
Awarded shares under the share award scheme R 17 BBy Et 2178 T )
(in '000) SRR (ATET) 8,300 5,890
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose HEREERNME
of diluted eamings per share (in ‘000) LimRE A (ATFat) 1,944,371 1,736,046
Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) SREERF (LABILE) 41.1 309
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PSRRI

31 December 2014
ZE-WEF=A=1—H
1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. 9% BERRE
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold
equipment fixtures buildings  improvements Motor
BAZE & Ti HE vehicles Total
R Rk%&E kT  NREB "E st
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F5H FTET FTER THER THAR THR TR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-mE
TZA=T-HLEFE
Asat | January 2014 R=ZE-NE-A—-H
Cost R 60,366 2,602 448776 15,431 2,004 529,179
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (51,518) (2,483) (45,634) (14,100) 2004 (115739)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,848 19 403,142 1,331 — 413440
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 8,848 19 403,142 1,331 = 413,440
Additions AE 15,191 68 = 1,187 1,666 18,112
Transfer from investment properties BRANZER = = 102,447 = = 102,447
Disposal HE o) = = = = 5)
Depreciation charged during the year ERE (6,969) (123) (12,034) (1,041) (324) (20491)
Closing net carrying amount ERREFE 17,065 64 493,555 1,477 1,342 513,503
Asat 31 December 2014 RZF-MET-A=1—H
Cost AR 75427 2,670 563,831 16,618 3,670 662,216
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (58,362) (2,606) (70,276) (15,141) (2,328) (148,713)
Net carrying amount FEFE 17,065 64 493,555 1,477 1,342 513,503
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-mEF=A=1—H
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) . 9% BERKEZ)
Furniture
Office and Land and Leasehold
equipment fixtures buildings  improvements Motor
PNE A T HE vehicles Total
B REE REFT  WERE AE st
Group HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T5E T T T T T T
For the year ended 3| December 2013 HEZZ =%
+ZA=t-HLEE

Asat | January 2013 RZE—=%-A—-H
Cost AR 54,173 2602 448776 14702 2004 522,257
Accumulated depreciation 2HE (45,648) Q011 (33,600) (9713) (1883) (92,855)
Net carying amount FEFE 8525 591 415,176 4989 121 429402
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 8525 51 415,176 4989 121 429,402
Additions RE 6,206 — — 729 - 6935
Depreciation charged during the year ERE (5883) (472) (12,034) (4387) (121 (22.897)
Closing net carrying amount FEREFE 8,848 19 403,142 1331 — 413440
As at 3| December 2013 RZF—=F+-A=1+—H
Cost AR 60,366 2602 448776 15431 2,004 529,179
Accumulated depreciation 25HE (1518) (2483) (45,634) (14,100) 004 (115739
Net carrying amount REFE 8848 19 403,142 1331 — 413440

The land and buildings included land in Hong Kong and are held under medium-

term leases.

THRETERREERTHENFE
L3 o
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
= L=l
12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REME
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
K& TR TR
At | January R—A—H
Cost A 115,055 15,055
Accumulated depreciation REtiTE (9,456) (6,304)
Net carrying amount REFE 105,599 108,75
At | January, net carrying amount R—A—B  RE#E 105,599 108,75
Depreciation neE (3,152) (3,152)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note) WmE¥ - BE RREERE (M) (102,447) —
At 31 December, net carrying amount R+—A=+—H  EEFE = 105,599
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost A — 115,055
Accumulated depreciation ZiE = (9/456)
Net carrying amount AREHE — 105,599
The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under B EMNA BB REREELEE o

medium-term leases.

Note: st

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, HE - ZE—=+-A=+—HI&
with leases negotiated for terms of three years for the year ended 31 December B AEERBEREHETHHAEKE
2013. For the year ended 3| December 2014, the Group agreed with the tenants B AHREEEE=F  HE—
in relation to early surrender of the tenancy agreement and reclassified the E-_NE+-A=+—HILFEE A&
investment properties into property, plant and equipment for own use. BEREHEPIERK LAY  WiBEEY

FENRRRAANE  BERRHE -
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—F-mEF=A=—A
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BYEE
Trading Club
rights  membership Total
R5HE Bfas st
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X&E THr TERr TER
Asat | January 2013, 3| December 2013 R=F—=F—H—H
and 3| December 2014 “E-=H+-A=1+—HBkK
“E-mE+-A=1—H
Net carrying amounts REFHE 1913 910 2,823

As at 3| December 2013 and 2014, the Group had three trading rights in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 as the trading rights and club membership

have no expiry date.

RZFE-—ZFR=-ZZF-—NF+
=t—B AREBRERBBHAER
MERARIN=ZERZERE SRS
SHAERDAIN-—ERHE - AR
EReMeETEINA  HHE
—ZFRZFE-ME+A=1+—RIt
FEITEREHENEE -

%
Xt No oo

\y

ERRI

<
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
—-mFt= =+
14.  OTHER ASSETS 14 Htt&E
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
K& TR TR
Basic contribution of the guarantee fund paid to Hong IRNTEAPREEERAF
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC") ([BBEE ) NREESEARHER 901 730
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: REEBBE X ZMBRA AN RS
— Compensation fund —fEES 150 150
— Fidelity fund —-BRE® 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —HERRe 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC INTEABENEANE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options REABERHITEELE
Clearing House Limited ARATNRES 1,500 —
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai Stock Exchange X4 ¥ EEZESR ZANGEERKRES 250 —
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited REBREREARRRNEZESE 1,500 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and REFLHEEHEREES
Futures Commission MR e 50 50
5,151 3,230
The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair values. AREFBEMEENRMELRENTERE

4

T

o
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014

—E-mEL A=t A

DEFERRED TAX 5. EREHIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows: FERNEERBEEEREEZSHOT :
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Fair value gains Total
MEHERE DY ERE )
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“2-mF ZF-=F “B-RF —T-=F “F-MF —T-=F
Group HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE Tz TAT FEr  TER TRz  TEn
At | January R—R—AR (4.275) (3966) (36,114) (14329) (40,389) (18,295)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited RERARERE
to profit or loss (i) /A (2,862) (309) 7776 (21,785) 4914 (22,094)
At 3| December R+ZA=1—AH (7,137) (4.275) (28,338) (36,114) (35,475) (40389)
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE
Losses available for
offsetting against future
taxable profits
M HERR Share-based compensation Total
RERFNEE SR R ER 05 M o H
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“B-RE ZT--F ZR-NF -F-=F “B-NmF —F-=F
Group HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000
rEE TE#x TAT FEr  TER Tz TR
At | January R—R—H 4,563 3670 1,494 995 6,057 4,665
Deferred tax (charged)/credited RERRRELERE
to profit or loss (i) /WA (4,563) 893 797 499 (3,766) 1392
At 31 December RtZA=1-H — 4563 2291 | 494 2291 6057
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
ZE-mFEF=ZA=+—H
I5. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the subsidiaries are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be utilised and settled after one
year and the following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ERLEDBIR (4)
BRETEMNATARASHREERR
MR AR EHERETRERSRRF—
BB - AR B A R BT
SHAERBEEREE - ETHAEHR
BERBRERRN —FRTUIARE
B MmTIIEFABEEAHREENE
BAEGFBIRRAFIE o

2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F

Group HK$'000 HK$'000
AEH TEr AT
Deferred tax assets BERERBEE 24 —
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR (33,208) (34332)
(33,184) (34332)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$1 .7 million
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$36.6 million), that are available indefinitely for

offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in group companies that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

RZZE-—ME+-A=1+—R ' A5H
REBANMBEBBARIITESET
(ZE—ZF:3%66BBBL) EES
EREAANATAREEEEEEARNR
SRIERTL A o
MEBRAIEEEREE —RER M
REBBE LR A ERB G MK H
B ZADABBTERRBELERE
BE -

WEH NI SRERELCHREE -

2014 2013

—2-pmE T =F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE FET FTAT
Tax losses TIBEE 11,743 8961
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31 December 2014
—E-AEF=A=1—A
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS S ES=E RN
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
r5E TR FAT
Margin loans FRER 8,406,678 5,584,049
Term loans to customers BTIRPRTEHER 693,243 422,008
Gross loans and advances to customers KTRFENERRBHEE 9,099,921 6,006,057
Less: impairment " ORE (757) (665)
9,099,164 6,005,392

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to customers

are as follows:

GBI EPHERRBRAEREL Y
N

2014 2013

—B-mE —FT-=F

Group HK$°000 HK$'000
X&H TER BT
As at | January n—H—H 665 679
Impairment loss charged to profit or loss FABRIRERE 92 88
Impairment loss reversed to profit or loss BEZBRRANEER = (102)
As at 3| December W+=A=+—H 757 665

The impairment loss charged to profit or loss included interest income on impaired
margin loans of HK$92,000 (2013: HK$88,000) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Included in the above provision of impairment of margin loans is a provision for
individually impaired margin loans of HK$757,000 (2013: HK$665,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$757,000 (2013: HK$665,000). Save as
disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers were neither past due nor

impaired as at 3|1 December 2014 and 201 3.

FABERREBEBREEE-T 1N
Ft+ZA=+—HLEFEEREFEE
FFBWA20008 T (ZE—=F:
88,000787T) °

L FREFRERERERENRE
BAR757,000/87C (ZF—=1F : 665000
BT) WERIRERTE SR E#E757,000
BT (ZT—=4F : 665000/87T) ° B
FXFEBEEN R —NER=T
—=F+=-A=1t—R8 KTEFEMA
BEERRBFRABE - IARRME o
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

16.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities transactions,
which are secured by customers’ securities held as collateral. The maximum credit
limit granted for each customer is based on the customer's financial background
and the quality of related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a Credit and Risk Management Department to

monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are
repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair
values. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of the margin loans
business. The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is determined by
the discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As
at 31 December 2014, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$37,206 million (2013: HK$25,799
million) based on the market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting

period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest
rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the relevant customers and the
quality of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted
to HK$679,231,000 (2013: HK$421,000,000), and the accrued interest amounted
to HK$14,012,000 (2013: HK$1,008,000) as at 31 December 2014. The carrying

amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their fair values.
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7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

@)

Analysis of accounts receivable

Notes to Financial Statements

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of business

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

17. WA
@) ERHEIT
A& BRI T A E A A IR

of the Group are as follows: BHREEMT :
2014 2013
—B-mE —F-=fF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
BN TR TERT
Accounts receivable arising from BE KL EEREYIE
dealing and broking
— cash and custodian clients - RERAERP 113,019 121,947
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses — BB R LA S B 201,933 4403
— brokers and dealers —RERRHE 541,427 657,958
Accounts receivable arising from stock BB EEE N EYGIE
borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers —RERRHE 119,002 135,257
Accounts receivable arising from corporate finance, F¥EE - EEEERIREER
asset management and investment holding P RO PR FKOR
— corporate clients and investment funds —-bEEPRREES 37,302 51916
1,012,683 1,011,109
Less: impairment wORE (11,580) (12,228)
1,001,103 998,881
The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as JEWEIBEREREZEESH T
follows:
2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
AEE T THT
As at | January n—HA—H 12,228 12,006
Impairment loss charged to profit or loss FABRRERE 2,750 232
Impairment loss reversed to profit or loss BEZBRRMREER — (10)
Amount written off as uncollectible i sH AN R U Bl By FRIB (3,398) =
As at 3| December Nt-—A=1—H 11,580 12,228

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF

149



Notes to Financial Statements

PSRRI

31 December 2014
= L=l
17.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 17. BRRE#E)
(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b)  BEARIBHERIN AR RE M FE MR IE
Accounts
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from
receivable  from the Stock corporate
from cash  Exchange and Accounts clients and
and  other clearing receivable investment
custodian houses  from brokers funds
cients  FEEERFR and dealers Btz
EURER ki EUELER EFRRE Total
HERFRE GEANE REERE EENA @t
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
r5E TR TiER TR TiER TR
Asat 3| December 2014 R=Z2-WE+-A=1-H
Neither past due BARBETARE
nor impaired 101,398 201,933 660,429 28,940 992,700
Asat 3| December 2013 RZE—=F+-H=+—H
Neither past due BARBHTARE
nor impaired 108,643 44,031 793215 43,805 989,694
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are neither past BARBEMAREREUER S KT
due nor impaired represent unsettled client trades on various securities EREFEENTNRESR SFTHE
exchanges transacted on the last one to three business days prior to the end TRREEERRE S ([A8
of the reporting year. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of AENAZEENZER SIS R
the directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the B MRESERAE  ERZERIK
nature of these accounts receivable. RIBRIME  BER ST A2 i

BIMBE - HUERERE AN o
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7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 17.

(©

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired

Accounts

Accounts receivable
receivable from the Stock
from cash  Exchange and

and  other clearing

custodian houses
cients  FEIEBER T
EURER REA
AERFHE  &AEARE

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—EWmEFZA=+—H
PR E (#)
EAHRERFENERRE
Accounts
receivable
from
corporate
Accounts clients and
receivable investment
from brokers funds
and dealers e {2
EURER ZEFRRE Total
REBERAE HEERA Azt

Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEH TET TR TET TET TR

Asat 3| December 2014 R=-Z-M&E+-A=+-H
Past due less than 6 months %1 E375{8 A LAA 2,965 = = 2,032 4997
Pastdue 6to [2 months ~ BEINZE+ A = = = 3,090 3,090
Past due over 12 months  BEI+—{EAM — — — 270 270
2,965 — — 5,392 8,357

Asat 3| December 2013 RZZE-—=%+-HA=+—H
Past due less than 6 months #1E37< 18 B I A 842 — — 2681 3523
Past due 6 to 12 months IR E+ 1A 7 — — — 5210 5210
842 — — 7891 8,733

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due but
not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges which
are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and custodian
clients fail to settle on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to
force-sell the collateral underlying the securities transactions. The outstanding
accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients as at 31 December
2013 and 2014 are considered past due but not impaired after taking into
consideration the recoverability from the collateral. The collateral held

against these receivables is publicly traded securities.

BEABERAERKRERTER
FRIBERTRBEF R BITETR
HERBRINABENEPRSM
BREOFE —BERERAER
PREVNEERBRENZRE &5
B ARERSIHERELRR 510
HERD - EERERR AR
% A_T—=FER_T—NF
TZA=+—ANREEEKRS
K ERPREMKEADBEE
FAE o ZEREIGRIBEF BT

Y EIPNG SR
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
ZE-mFEFZA=1-H
17.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 17. BRRE#E)

(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued) () ECABEXRBENEKRREE)
Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds which EaHERRENEREERFPR
are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from asset HEBESHIEEZTENANER
management, corporate finance and advisory services which have not EEMBHEABENEWZIEE
yet been settled by clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The HEHEEEE PERBENEMR
outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds B) e NZE—=FEK_ZF—NF
as at 3| December 2013 and 2014 are considered not to be impaired as the +t-A=+—BREBRRECER
credit rating and reputation of the trade counterparties are sound. ERIGEESHTIBHEERRE

RRARRZHFEREERTRL
BE -
(d)  Impaired accounts receivable d) EREEKRE

Accounts

Accounts Accounts receivable

receivable receivable from

from cash ~ from the Stock corporate

and  Exchange and Accounts clients and

custodian  other clearing receivable investment

clients houses  from brokers funds

EEREE BUHBRAM  anddealers Btz
kg kEf BRELER FFRRE Total
RFRE HEF¥E RZERA g8 @zt
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
r&HE TER TR TER TET TR

Asat 3| December 2014 R=-Z-ME+-A=+-H
Impaired accounts receivable B B fE YA 8,656 — — 2,970 11,626
Less: impairment W RfE (8,610) = = (2,970) (11,580)
46 = = = 46
Asat3] December 2013 RZZ—=#+-A=1—H

Impaired accounts receivable B J5i & FE Y7 IE 12,462 — — 220 12,682
Less: impainment W RE (12,008) — — (220) (12228)
454 = = = 454
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17.

Notes to Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continuea)

(d)  Impaired accounts receivable (continued)
Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered impaired
when clients fail to settle according to settlement terms after taking into

consideration the recoverability of collateral.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

17. BRREE)

(d EREERFKEE)
RERERmMAkENE 5%
FPAREBBEEE GIETHER -
ERRERAERPRESHER
WA

18. BNME RERAMERRE

2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
rEE TER FET
Interest receivables JEUFIE 3,956 3,741
Prepayments, deposits and others BNFIE - mEREM 47,328 17,600
Subscription monies on financial investments RECHMIRERE 77,568 —
Total a5t 128,852 21,34
Company
EAH
Prepayments, deposits and others BNFIE - BEREM 4299 2,737

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

TREESBEARTRRE - STALBERE
BRUTENEREETHY BEOZE

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF

153



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19. BAVERARGRNEREE

2014 2013
—B-mE —2-=fF
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
&M TRz TRT
Financial assets held for trading: RIEEENERERE -
— Listed equity investments — FRARE 240,395 212,025
— Listed debt investments — EHREERE 774,949 420,658
— Unlisted debt investments —FEMEKRE 128,111 227,459
Financial assets designated as at fair value EBERLFETABRE
through profit or loss TREE -
— Unlisted fund investments (Note (a)) —FEMESKRE (M) 52,443 =
— Unlisted convertible promissory note —FEMAHRRER(FTRRER)
(the “Convertible Promissory Note") (Note (b)) (PH5E (b)) 157,191 123,575
1,353,089 983717

Notes:

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation and
investment income. The interest held by the Group are in the form of participating
shares which provides the Group with the share of returns from the investment
funds, but not any decision making power nor any voting right. Given that the Group
only held the beneficial interest without holding any voting right or substantial decision
making power as principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

The Group purchased a Convertible Promissory Note issued by a third party (the
“Issuer”) amounting to approximately HK$42,650,000 in May 201 I. It bears a fixed
interest rate from | January 2013 to 3| December 2014 and the interest income
was HK$2,985,000 (2013: HK$2,985,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
In addition, the Group will be compensated for the shortfall (the “Profit Guarantee
2013 and 2014") if the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Project Company
for either the year ended 3| December 2013 or 2014 is less than certain threshold
levels, depending on the listing date of the Project Company prior to 3| December
2014.
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9.

20.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 19.

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Issuer and the Group agreed to
extend the maturity to 30 June 2016 and the Profit Guarantee 2013 and 2014 were
released. The Group will be compensated for the shortfall (the “Profit Guarantee
2014 and 2015") if the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Project Company
for either the year ended 3| December 2014 or 2015 is less than certain threshold
levels, depending on the listing date of the Project Company prior to 30 June 2016.
The expected amount and timing of receipt of the shortfall compensation are part
of the input variables used to determine the fair value of the investment in the

Convertible Promissory Note.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded
as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional amount,
recorded gross, is the amount of a derivative's index and is the basis upon which
changes in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the

volume of transactions outstanding at the year end and are indicative of neither the

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

BRAVEFTAERNEMER#)

PEE : ()

BE_ZT-HNE+-_HA=+—H1It
FEA - BOARREERE S
HERE-ZT—A"FAA=1tAH I
R —E—=F R =T —EFHEFIR
g WMEZE_T-NFH T —0F
TZA=+T—HILFEERAFKE
ERmaRBREMERE TRE

K- RIREEKEHEZR( -
—OER—Z-RFEMFE]) 0 L

AHRFRE AR ETAHENR -
—RERNAZTHME - BHREER
Y BR 2= B B OB P A PR AR B SE IO R
BRERRENATFHENES D

BAREH -
fTEEMIA

TRENCEREEXABENITESR
TANRVEERELZSHE - o
MERTRABRITERENSE I
RITETABEAEZEPNER - BF
\,%ﬁi’éﬁﬂbﬁiﬂiﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁx%g B

market risk nor the credit risk. SRR INIEEEREMAIEE
Fair value
AT
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities

£HEH BE 8
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
g Fgxr ~ TER  TER
As at 31 December 2014 R-Z-—EF+-A=1+—H
Cross currency swap R X &t 1 501,684 1,766 (1,766)

The Group did not have any derivative financial instruments as at 31 December

2013.

As at 3|1 December 2014, cash collateral of HK$6.0 million was received from and n=

placed to respective counterparties (2013: nil).

AEBR - Z—=F+-_A=+—BIEES
EFfTESRTIA -

—WFE+-A=1+—H 60EEELH

SEBERDERERZFEFUERRNR FEHF
(=

—=£:%)

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

3/ December 2014
—F-mFEF-F=+—H
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBELZEY
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
Group HK$'000 HK$'000
AEE TR FTET
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHER 658,069 378,152
Time deposits EHER 231,217 107,143
889,286 485,295
2014 2013
—E-mF ZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Denominated in R T B E
HKS BT 736,393 341,572
US$ eI 102,784 61247
RMB ARK 49219 76,175
Others HAth 890 6,301
889,286 485,295
2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F
Company HK$'000 HK$'000
VYN THT FTAT
Cash and bank balances denominated in HK$ UATEHERR S MIETER 40,497 [,205
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22.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-FEF-HA=1—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 20 BERBEZEY S
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group RBEEHEERE  AEERE IR
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$49,219,000 (2013: THRANARBIAREDHER
HK$76,175,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, 49,219,000 T(ZF —=4F : 76,175,000
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration BIL) s ARETNSEREBAEME
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is B R IRBERBINEEIE N AEE
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to EENNEEERTE  AEEAEER
conduct foreign exchange business. BETIIEZBORTHEARBLAR
Hin &% -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. BIEZERSERTERNRIRZH
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and FRF R - HHFHERNFRANT
three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and —RAE=A REAEENHKREH
eam interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are SKifjE - Y 148 8 58 B E A A SRR R 5t
deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of default. B RORABREFAGERTAEER
B mES -
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RMBRFARE
2014 2013
—EB-mE —F-=fF
Company HK$'000 HK$'000
b YN TER TET
Unlisted shares, at cost I LMD IRAAE 3,268,016 1268440
Capital contribution in respect of FLE 8 AR 0 AERE )
employee share-based compensation FMEE 137,377 70,229
Recharge in respect of employee share-based compensation Fi{E B LARR {7 A E 78 /) &7 Bl & A& (61,228) (22,503)
3,344,165 1,316,166
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Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
ZE-mFEFZA=1-H
22.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22. RMBRARKRE#E)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 3| December 2014 are as follows: RZE-—NMFE+-_A=1+—8 {BLQ
RIMOFEINT -
Percentage of equity
attributable to
Place of the Company
incorporation KRR EMS
and business REBDLL
Company name B & Share capital  Direct Indirect  Principal activities
RNEEB TEw [LEN B B TEXHR
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/ US$262,000,000 100% —  Investment holding and provision of general
Limited? ("GHK")? Hong Kong 262,000,000 7T administration and support services to its
BRER(BE)BRAR? BES/BE subsidiaries
(TBHRELRER]) REERRMANBAFRE
—KER R ERE
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$3,000,000,000 — 100%  Securities dealing and broking and provision
(Hong Kong) Limited* B 3,000,000,000 7T of wealth management
AHRELER(BFE)BRRA BHFEBERELARRBT R ER
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited £ 50,000,000 %8 7 HEEE SR
ARELHE(FE)BRRA
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$ 100,000,000 — 100%  Money lending and trading in securities
(Hong Kong) Limited? BB 100,000,000 7T EEREHEE
ARELRHB(BE)BRLAAS
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 = 100%  Provision of consultancy and financial
ERELMERRAF BB 50,000,000 7T services
R AR RIS IR
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 = [00%  Asset management
Lirited BE 5,000,000/ 7T BEER
ARELEEER(TM)
BRAH
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22. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

22. RMBRARKREE)

Percentage of equity

attributable to
Place of the Company
incorporation AN EEL
and business REBDL
Company name TR AR S R Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AR geny [LEN BE BE IEXRH
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 50%  Asset management and trading in securities
Management Limited' £ 10,000,000 7T BEEERESEE
ARELESERARAA
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 — 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
BREZIMNEERAA] B 30,000,000 /87T broking
BERIINER 5 LB
Note I: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and operating fizEl: ARASEERNIZEXELES
policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or remove the SRLHKE  MAEBEREBRL
majority of the members of its Board of Directors. HEEE BB TR R B S -
Note 22 On 12 June 2014, Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited has injected W2 R=FE—WESA+=-8 BXRE
US$257,900,000 to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited by subscribing for its ZREBERER AT EBRERS
257,900,000 new shares of par value of US$1.00 each. EZ(FH) AR A T 257,900,000 %
FHEE 100X R MEE
A257,9000003% T °
Note 3:  On 23 April 2014, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited has injected HK$99,000,000 s : R—ZT—mEMA—+=H B
to Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Kong) Limited by subscribing for its 99,000,000 ER(BEB)VERATIEBAEHSE
new shares. ERIH(ER)ARA7F 99000000
BB I EDE A 99,000,000/ T ©
Note 4. On 30 April 2014, Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited has injected W4 R—FE—NWENA=1+H " BHxE

HK$400,000,000 to Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited by subscribing
for its 400,000,000 new shares.

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and repayable on demand. The carrying

amount approximates to the fair value as at the end of the reporting period.

Z(BB)BRAREBABERE

2 % (H%) AR 2 7 400,000,000

H% 31 8% 17 17 £ )% A 400,000,000 7

=
EUHBARRBAERFIAREX
BEE NEEHR EFEAEEQF
EfA °

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
—-mFt= =+
23.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23, BARE
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
K& TER TET
Accounts payable arising from dealing and broking BERKLEEERNERR
- dlients -EP 9,109,373 8,186,245
- brokers and dealers —BEEX5E 257,351 445,354
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses — B AR &Eﬁﬂ%x ﬁ 228,444 61275
Accounts payable arising from BREEEEENENK
securities borrowing and lending 379,305 250,790
Accounts payable arising from corporate rEREREEEEEENENZKE
finance and asset management 29,993 176,716
Accounts payable arising from wealth management services 2 8 IR 2 A4 O e 15 500R 2 —

10,004,468 9,120,380

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for certain
accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits received from clients
for their trading activities in the normal course of business. Only the excess

amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within one business
day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the ageing

analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with
authorised institutions of HK$9,010 million (2013: HK$7,967 million), Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of
HK$159 million (2013: HK$ 122 million).

Accounts payable arising from wealth management services includes those payables

in trust accounts with authorised institutions of HK$2,000 (201 3: nil).

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing except for the accounts payable to

clients.
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24.

25.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-FEF-HA=1—H

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 24, HittEMARERETRE
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
A FRT AR
Other payables HERFIR 10,836 2267
Accrued liabilities JERT AR 185,829 136,762
196,665 139,029
Company
ART
Accrued liabilities JEET R 849 89|
Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and have an average HMENRERESEETTE HE
term of three months. HERBIMEA -
BANK BORROWINGS 25. $RITER
2014 2013
—¥-mF —F-=F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
K& TR TR
Non-current EnE)
Unsecured bank borrowings EHERRITER 990,000 —
Current ik
Secured bank borrowings CEMIRITER 200,000 1,070,000
Unsecured bank borrowings EHRRITER 3272,719 2316113
3,472,719 3,386,113
Total bank borrowings RITENERE 4,462,719 3,386,113

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

25. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

RATHER(E)
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$000
TER THT

Denominated in RAT®REEHE
HK$ BT
Uss$ e
RMB AR#

3,600,000 3,200,000
589,517 186,113
273,202 —

4,462,719 3,386,113

Bank loans of HK$200 million (2013: HK$1,070 million) were secured by certain of
the listed shares pledged by the customers to the Group as margin loan collateral
which had an aggregate fair value amounting to HK$1,903.4 million as at 3|

December 2014 (2013: HK$2,433.3 million).

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered Rate plus an

interest spread.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair values as

the impact on discounting is not significant.
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26.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-mE+=f=1—A
DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE ERITEEES
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Group and Company AEERALRE TERT FET
At amortised cost: bie: 3ic) D PINE
HK$ medium-term notes BT HEE 83,800 59,700
US$ medium-term notes ETHHEE — 162,705
RMB medium-term notes AREEREZE 87,323 102,301
171,123 324,706

The outstanding balance of HK$I71.1 million (2013: HK$324.7 million) represents
unsecured unlisted notes issued by the Company under the Company's Medium
Term Note Programme (the “MTN Programme™). As at 3| December 2014, the
medium-term notes bear fixed interest rates ranged from 0.1% to 3.49% (2013: 1%
to 3.35%).

The Group and the Company have not had any defaults of principal, interest or

other breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2013: nil)

The carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values

as the impact on discounting is not significant.

ABEHRBI7.IBEAELCE—=
F3HTEEAT)ERARAREARARD
APHZRFE(PHEREE]) %
THEERELTRE - R2E—NF
TZA=T—R " vHERAEETEF
ENT0I%EIA% ZF—=F : I%ZE
3.35%) °

REE R ARARFE AL EE R A A
T MEREMRBETEEENER(Z
T—=F:E)-
ARTBOFEITEXN  HERTE
BEFORODEEL A FERS o
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B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
“E-AFF=A=1+—H
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. RAE
Group AEE
Number of
issued and
fully paid Share capital ~ Share premium Total
shares HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERITR BRA R4 aE #st
BRRHME FERr TR TR
At | January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H |,640,000,000 164,000 2771707 2,935,707
Shares issued upon placing of FEIBLE Mz {7 1 24T R AR {0
shares 85,000,000 8,500 178,264 186,764
Share issued upon exercise of [ B AR 51 &1 T £
share options under the BRERTEMETHRN
share option scheme (P 28)
(Note 28) 2,650,000 265 9,269 9,534
At3] December 2013and  R-F—=F+-A=t—-ARK
| January 2014 —Z-NFE-A—H ,727,650,000 172,765 2,959,240 3,132,005
Transfer to issued capital BEDBTRAM)
(Note) = 2,959,240 (2,959,240) =
Shares issued upon placing of EBLE MR 7 1 1T RI MR R
shares 160,000,000 687,223 = 687,223
Shares issued upon rights issue £t % 817 RIAR £ 378,560,000 2,004,864 — 2,004,864
Shares issued upon exercise of &I i #E 5T 2| T /)
share option under the BREBTEMETORR
share option scheme (P 28)
(Note 28) 7,666,128 28,102 = 28,102
At 31 December 2014 R=F-NFE+-A=+—H 2273876,128 5,852,194 — 5,852,194
Note: fiss -

Pursuant to the provisions for the abolition of the nominal value of share capital under BEN_Z—NE= A =HBERINTHES
RENEAIABEUBRAEENEX - RZF
—ME=A=ZAHRMEEREREEER
capital. N o

the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which became effective on 3 March 2014, the

balances of the share premium account as at 3 March 2014 have been transferred to share
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Pursuant to a placing and subscription agreement dated 14 April 2014, GJHL
agreed to i) place its existing 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company through
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, the placing agent, to not less than
six independent parties at a placing price of HK$4.30 each; and ii) subscribe for
the same number of ordinary shares of the Company that GJHL has placed as

mentioned above at a subscription price of HK$4.30 each.

On 25 April 2014, the Company allotted and issued 160,000,000 ordinary shares
to GJHL at the subscription price of HK$4.30 each. After deducting the expense in
connection with the top-up placement amounting to HK$777,000 the net proceeds
of HK$687,223,000 were credited to the Company's share capital account.

On 18 August 2014, the Company proposed a right issue on the basis of | rights
share for every 5 existing shares held by the shareholders of the Company at the
rights issue price of HK$5.30 per share. The rights issue was completed on 29
September 2014 and 378,560,000 ordinary shares were issued on 30 September
2014. After deducting the expense in connection with this rights issue amounting
to HK$1,504,000, the net proceeds of HK$2,004,864,000 were credited to the

Company's share capital account.

Company

HK$2,984,000 of the issuance cost for the listing of the Company on the Stock
Exchange in 2010 was related to the inter-company transactions. As a result, the
share capital of the Company was only HK$5,849,210,000 as at 31 December
2014.

27.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

L
BEAHA-ZT—NFNATEHAMNE
ERARERRE BRELERFAE)E
BERERER(BR)ERARA(RER
B)REEEFR430BTRATIRAE
8 3 A B AL 160,000,000 A 2 73R
LTER: RiNERER40ETHRE
BRELABRELERMAEELARR
HEREE M EER o

RZFE-MEMA-+HAB  ADAK
REETR40BTRBERE L ERE
% ] 347 160,000,000 R LB - BEH
BRRRENHZ 7770008 TEMATE
HIEF 687223000 B LEFAKXAH
BRARER o

RZZE-—MENA+TNB - KARIEZ
RERSI0BTHHEREBEARRBR
RERESRAERMER | RERRH
RERETHE - HfBRR-Z-—EFEA
AZTNBREK YR-ZF-—MFNA
=+ H%47378,560,000 % L 5@ AR AL A%
BB B LR AR 8 7 32 1,504,000 7 7T
% #) P15 FIEF 58 2,004,864,000 8 L E
STARD B AR

zz) B

T

ARF

ARRRZE—SFEHIMEMHE
17 B 22,984,000 7T 8 & B A A 7] A
RPZE@-AY - RZT—WE+=HA
=+ —BARRKRAERS5849,210000
BT o
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31 December 2014
e A e

28.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
The Board of Directors has the discretion to grant share options to employees
and directors of any members of the Group, including independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date

(ie. 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 0%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any [2-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options

in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are subject to shareholders' approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ | in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the

share options.
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28.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer.

On 10 January 2014, the Company granted 50,000,000 share options at the
exercise price of HK$3.82 per share to its directors and employees under the
Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted, 9,750,000 share options
were granted to the directors of the Company. The option period of the share
options is from 10 January 2014 to 9 January 2024. One-third of the share options
granted will be vested on the first, second and third anniversaries of the date of
grant respectively. The closing price of the Company's shares prior to the date of

grant (i.e. 9 January 2014) was HK$3.72 per share.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options was estimated on the date of
grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions

upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used:

Share price at the date of grant (per share)

Exercise price (per share) TEE(EKR)
Expected volatility SELEN A
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B U 2s &
Risk-free interest rate 4 7 B Al R

Weighted average share option price (per share)

28.

PR A B AE (B )

IOHEF I R R E AR (B AR

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

BRERE®)
BRENTTEEAESER - K
RATREE : ()RR AR R ERE
ZHORMEBRAOBHE ki) AR
AR EZRENE PN AERSBE
B PE) PR E

RZZE—NF—A+H  KAARERE
R BIRITEEER382ETRA
£ = {8 8 % 1150,000,00017 B A4
TEFTIRBRAEE F + 9,750,00017 BB AR 4
ERTARAMES - BRENE XS
BE-E-WFE-A+tHBE-T-_NEF
—ANBILE  FIREREN=S2—#
DARREASENE— - =  ZAFE
BB - ARAIRMHARL 2B (1=
T-ME—-ANH) AIRKHERER
37287T ¢

DS ERRENRTENER -8B
AEERUNFL AIMETRET UL
AT BB AR 3 PRI A0 Rk B IR A

TRIEAARERNTR2H -

HK$3.82
HK$3.82
43.82%
4.19%
2.38%
HK$1.07
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28.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)
The expected volatility and the expected dividend yield reflect the assumptions that
the historical volatility and the historical dividend yield, respectively, are indicative of

future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, 1,000,000 share options with an exercise
price of HK$3.82 each lapsed (2013: 500,000 share options with an exercise price
of HK$2.50 each lapsed) prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

7,666,128 share options were exercised during the year ended 3| December
2014 (2013: 2,650,000 share options), resulting in the issue of 7,666,128 shares
(2013: 2,650,000 shares) for a total cash consideration of HK$19,115,000
(2013: HK$6,625,000). An amount of HK$8,987,000 (2013: HK$2,909,000) was
transferred from the share option reserve to the share capital account upon the
exercise of the share options. The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year was HK$5.16 per share (201 3:
HK$ 3.34).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group has recognised a share-based
compensation expense of HK$32,685,000 for the share options under the Share
Option Scheme in profit or loss (2013: HK$9,577,000).
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28.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

Movements of share options outstanding under the share option scheme during

the year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

BREREZE)
FRBRETEIR EATERERENE
BT

2014 2013

—B-

Weighted
average

exercise price

lfd —T=f

Weighted

average

mEES exercise price

T8 BiEZAE
HK$ Number HK$ Number
per share of options per share of options
BRET BREHE BikAT BREHEA
At | January R—A—A 250 35,850,000 250 39,000,000
Granted during the year FRAKL 3.82 50,000,000 = =
Adjusted during the year FARE 329 635,393 = =
Lapsed during the year FRXK 3.82 (1,000,000) 250 (500,000
Exercised during the year FRTE 249 (7,666,128) 250 (2,650,000)
At 31 December RtZRA=+—H 331 77819265 250 35850000

Upon completion of the rights issue on 29 September 2014, the exercise price and

the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the outstanding share options

had been adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

R-FB—MEAR - T BOERTK
% RENTEBERENTEERETE
FTREOIREENROEE CREERE
FTEIMIERGETRE -
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION RESERVE (continued)

At 3| December 2014, the Company had 77,819,265 (2013: 35,850,000)
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represents
approximately 3.42% (2013: 2.08%) of the Company's shares in issue as at 3|
December 2014. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 77,819,265
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$257,690,000 (before issuance expenses). The option periods of the share
options are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021 and from 10 January 2014 to 9
January 2024.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE

On 27 October 201 I, the Company adopted the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme") under which shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares")
may be awarded to selected employees (including directors) of any members of
the Group (the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules
and trust deed of the share award scheme. The share award scheme became
effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will

remain in force for |0 years from that date, i.e, 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme
is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption
date. The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Employee in any |2-month period up to and including the date of award
shall not in aggregate exceed |% of the issued share capital of the Company as at

the adoption date.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—EmEFZA=1—H
SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued) 29. R RBREE)
When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include HMEREEFAARGEEENELA
service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of Directors of the B ENEYI R 2 e B R (EEh Al Ak
Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares BERBEHAE /ARENELE)  #
of the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the AEDRAEBEENARGRG - A
relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The selected employee ERmERNZL EEEZEBERKRD o
however is not entitled to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend A EREEERWIEMBRAS S
derived from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. K MRBNETEAKASEBRERD
HRR S
Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 3| December 2014 are RZZE—NE+-_A=T+—HELEAK
set out below: GENRBRONOFEHIINT
Average fair
value per share Number of Number of Number of Number of
Date of Awarded (HK$) Awarded Shares Awarded Shares Awarded shares Awarded Shares
Shares granted BR granted vested lapsed unvested
RHRRE FHDYE RHRRE CRBRB BRRER REBRE  Vesting dates
I 43 &9 B #8 (B7) R E BREOHNBE ROKNHBE R E HEBEH
22/4/2013 297 8,567,000 (5,598,000) (241,000) 2,728,000 307112015
9/4/2014 400 9,406,000 (3,146,000) (19,000) 3,129,000 30/11/2015
3,112,000 30/11/2016
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29.

SHARE AWARD RESERVE (continued)

The fair value of the Awarded Shares granted during the year ended 31 December
2014 was measured at the share price amounted to HK$4.36 of the Company
on the grant date, being adjusted the expected dividends before the vesting date.
The expected dividends reflect the assumptions that the historical dividends are

indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

The Board resolved on 30 October 2014 that the grantee is also entitled to receive
dividends derived from unvested Awarded Shares together with the Awarded
Shares on the vesting date. The amendment of the Share Award Scheme resulted
in an incremental fair value of HK$5,672,000 of which HK$3,516,000 has been
recognized in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Group
has also recognised a share-based compensation expense of HK$31,052,000
for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme in profit or loss (201 3:
HK$20,337,000). 8,271,000 Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the
grantees or sold in accordance with their instructions at no cost (2013: 6,618,000

Awarded Shares) for the year ended 3| December 2014.

238,000 Awarded Shares lapsed prior to their vesting date as a result of staff
resignations for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 202,000 Awarded
Shares).
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30.

31.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARES HELD UNDER THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the year are as

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

30. REROGRBEFENRS
R ) SRt Bl H A MR (D R A9

follows: mn
2014 2013
—2-pf —F=F
Number of Number of
HK$000 shares HK$'000 shares
TERT ROBE TET RHHA
At | January Kn—A—H 56,702 18,354,000 28833 13,111,000
Purchased during the year REAREE 39,691 9,171,000 42447 11,861,000
Subscription for rights issue REBHR 27,177 5,127,800 =
Vested and transferred out RENFBKE L
during the year (20,673)  (8,271,000) (14578)  (6,618,000)
At 31 December R+-A=t—H 102,897 24,381,800 56,702 18,354,000

During the year ended 3| December 2014, the trustee acquired 9,171,000 ordinary
shares (2013: 11,861,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for the Share Award
Scheme through purchases in the open market at a total cost, including related

transaction costs of approximately HK$39,69 1,000 (201 3: HK$42,447,000).

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 represents
a merger reserve, being the difference between the issued share capital of
HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of
share capital and share premium of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company
transferred and issued to GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share

capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited on 4 June 2010.

REBEE_T-NF+_A=+t—HILFE X
a?/\wzﬂxfﬁé%%ﬁzm BN (BIERBRSK
AR)#739,691,000 8 7T (ZF— =4 : 42,447,000
BIL)ERAHRMZEAI71,000 AR R L&
B(ZZ—=F : 11,861,000 L@A) o

3. R
(@) ZA&HE

AEENFRERREZHNGER
BEEHRAZR

RZE-—=FR-_F-MF+_H
:+—E| AEBHEMEEREH
FE BERER(BAR)ERD
7)) B BT A AN 31,980,000 78 7T 1
“E-TF A RATHAEKRFER
Bl E L inss R BT KR
DEENMRRERER(ES)
ERAAIMZHBERITRA)EHE
1,268,440,000 78 7T < 1) Z 58
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PSRRI

31 December 2014
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31.  RESERVES (continued) 3. fEE)
(b)  Company (b) A2TF
Shares held
under the
share award
Share award scheme
Share option reserve RERSG Proposed Retained
reserve g ] KRt al dividend profits
RRERE e BEORG B S RERA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TERn TEn FTER
At | January 2014 R-Z-MF-A—H 39,998 9,054 (56,702) 222,209 13,794
Total comprehensive income EnZEkHRLE
for the year = = = = 462,080
Shares issued upon placement AR ERRDMETH
of shares (Note 27) R (M 27) - — - 20,800 (20,800)
Recognition of equity-settled PR EBR R & E I
share-based payments B3 R
(Notes 28 and 29) (HizE28%29) 32,685 31,052 - - -
Purchase of shares held underthe B8 ERIBIR (D REYE 21355
share award scheme (Note 30) #RR{ (B3 30) — - (66,868) (643) 643
Vesting of shares for the share award R 17 215t EI55 8
scheme (Notes 29 and 30) AR (Bt 29 & 30) - (26222) 20673 — 5,549
Shares issued upon exercise of share  REE R 5T 3178 [ 4
options under the share option BRERTEMmET
scheme (Note 28) Rk (M 28) (8.987) — - 430 (430)
Final dividend paid for 2013 (Note 9) 5t = Z—=F X {fH)
RER B (FiHi9) - — - (242,79) -
Interim dividend declared and ERRXARHRS
paid (Note 9) (H&9) — — - - (149,293)
Proposed final dividend for TR
2014 (Note 9) RER B (FiHE9) - — - 292,434 (292,434)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1—H 63,696 13,884 (102,897) 292,434 19,109
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—EWmEFZA=+—H
RESERVES (continued) 3. fRE#E)
Company (continued) (b) EAF(E)
Shares held
under the
share award
Share award scheme
Share option reserve RERSG Proposed Retained
reserve g ] KRt al dividend profits
RRERE e BEORG Rk S REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TER TEn TER
At | January 2013 R=-E-=F—-F—H 33330 5720 (28833) 113,882 1407
Total comprehensive income ERzEkRRLE
for the year = = = = 279351
Shares issued upon placement of — EECE (A MR THIAR A
shares (Note 27) (ME27) — — - 5950 (5.950)
Recognition of equity-settled share- ~ FERAMRIRIELE E A
based payments (Notes 28 and 29) R3S MIFA IR
(MfEE28 2 29) 9577 20337 — — —
Purchase of shares held under the BB RER (N REBIF Bl A
share award scheme (Note 30) #R {3 (B3 30) — — (42447) (184) 184
Vesting of shares for the share award & {7 825t &I 55 B k17
scheme (Notes 29 and 30) (29 %30) - (17,003) 14578 — 2405
Shares issued upon exercise of share  RBE R 5T 3178 T 41
options under the share option BRRERTIE
scheme (Note 28) ME&TTEMR{ (M 28) (2909) — - 8l (@81)
Final dividend paid in 2012 (Note 9)  Ht=F—ZFEX[HRHRARS
(Ht=E9) - — - (119,729) -
Interim dividend declared and paid & R {4 EIR B
(Note 9) (H&9) — — — — (51333)
Proposed final dividend for 2013 Ft=E—=FERA K LR B
(Note 9) (M&9) = — - 22209 (222209)
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=#+-A=1-H 39998 9,054 (56,702) 22209 13,794
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31.  RESERVES (continued)
(b)  Company (continued)

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended 3| December 2014 includes a profit of HK$462,080,000 (201 3:
HK$279,351,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.

32. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for an IT upgrade and office renovation of
approximately HK$6,681,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at 31
December 2014 (2013: HK$533,000).

Other commitments

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations on placing, IPO, takeover and
merger activities and financial obligations to loans facilities granted to customers.
As at 31 December 2014, the underwriting and financial obligations were
approximately HK$12.3 million and HK$763.0 million, respectively (2013: HK$256.8
million and HK$176.4 million).

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings up to
HK$5,199.5 million (2013: HK$2,730 million) as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company provided guarantees up to HK$248.9
million (31 December 2013: HK$249.0 million) in favour of financial institutions in
respect of the trading limit and insurance brokerage limit granted to wholly-owned
subsidiaries principally engaged in the provision of securities and futures dealing and

broking services.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013.
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34. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 34.

@)

Notes to Financial Statements

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of every Director of the Company paid/payable by the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 are set out below:

Year ended 3| December 2014

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

EENEHEEEMS
@ EEHMS

AERHZE-_E—=FF-_T—N
F+-_A=t-HILEEEHNTE
NARBEEEZHMEENMT :

BZE-Z-NE+=-HA=+—-HL
FE

Share-based compensation reserve
URARERAERAS
Employer’s Share Share
contribution option award
t0 pension expense scheme
scheme (Note28)  (Note 29)
Directors'  Salaryand Discretionary Exm BhRE ROKB
fee  allowance bonuses Bife Sub-total HE HE | Total
ESRe FERER BERL  FRHR MEh | (KiE28)  (WRE29) st
Name of Director HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 | HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
E3ns Tén  TEx  TEx  TEx | TEn| TEx FExr  TE=n
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Yim Fung 4] = 1,944 13,500 17 15,461 3333 11573 30,367
Wong Tung Ching %5 = 2,466 7,350 17 9,833 1,743 3381 14957
Li Guangle ZRA - 1,881 2,100 17 3,998 87 908 5,778
Li Sang, Edward Bk — 1,768 [,750 17 3,535 872 7% 5,203
Independent non-executive
Directors: BUHHTEE
Fu Tingmei BiEx 315 — — - 315 3% - 350
Song Ming R 315 — — - 315 3 - 350
Tsang Yiu Keung EiR% 315 — — - 315 3 - 350
945 8,059 24700 68 3,772 6,925 16,658 57,355
b The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in the above * R ARRGD BERHEE

table represents amortisation to the profit or loss of the fair value of these
share options and awarded shares granted to the directors measured at the

respective grant dates.

FX AR TEERBERER
B RE L B ENAFE
RBERHHEE
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31 December 2014
= L=l
34. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 4. EEREHEEEME2)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EZME #)
Year ended 3| December 2013 HE-Z—=F+-F=+—HIt
L3
Share-based compensation reserve’®
B AER R R
Employer's Share Share
contribution option award
to pension expense scheme
scheme (Note28)  (Note 29)
Directors ~ Salaryand  Discretionary EEm BRE ROZE
fee allowance bonuses BHE | Subtota HE] 8l Total
E3HE FeREM BRERL  HEER Gt | (KEE2s)  (RAE29) st
Name of Director HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
54 T  TEr TR  TEn| TR | TEr  TEAT  TER
Exeautive Directors: HIEE -
Yim Fung L - | 944 26019 15 219718 1559 6917 36454
Yao Wei iz - 2480 - . 2480 . - 2480
Wong Tung Ching 145 - 2280 7350 15 9,645 m 1938 12362
Li Guangjie ZEA - 743 2,100 15 3858 3% 463 4711
Li Sang, Edward 3 - 1653 1756 15 3424 390 444 4258
Independent non-executie  BIUFHTEE :
Directors:
Fu Tingmei BE: 307 - - - 307 130 - 437
Song Ming RE 307 - - - 307 130 - 437
Tsang Yiu Keung L2 307 - - - 307 130 - 47
92l 10,100 37225 60 48,306 3508 9,762 61,576
* The amount of share-based compensation expense illustrated in the above * FREFIAIRD AEB R EE
table represents amortisation to the profit or loss of the fair value of these By AR TEERRERIEER
share options and awarded shares granted to the directors measured at the IR iR A st E A TE
respective grant dates. RIERTEHEHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

34. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales generated

by the individuals, the five highest paid employees during the vear included

two (2013: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in

note 34(a) above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2013:

three) non-director and highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

34.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

EEREREEERS
(&)
(b) ENBRSEHEMAL

BRUABERMATEEANHEERESHA
AX R ERRHFKIEIN - FRAM
EaFNEERERE(ZE—=
F:MB)ES HEMFEER
EXCHFE34G) - EREB=R(Z
E-=F:ZR)FEZRERF

Hi & 8 MV IS0 T -

2014 2013

—E-mE —ZT—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TRz TRT

Salary and allowance e KR 5,049 5027

Discretionary bonuses R TEAT 17,150 8015

Employer’s contribution to pension scheme BE RN ST EHK 34 30

Sub-total NEt 22,233 13,072
Share-based compensation reserve AR RERHER X

— Share option expense —ERERX 1,792 780

— Share award expense — R D RN 2918 1,716

Total st 26,943 15,568

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the Group fall within the

following bands:

AEBSEFMALHBMEN L
THE -

Emolument bands

o e

— HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
— HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
— HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
— HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
— HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
— HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000

—4,500,001 87T 2 5,000,000/ 7T — |

—5,000,001 77T % 5,500,000 7T
—5,500,001 7 7T 6,000,000 7T
—7,000,001 8 7T2 7,500,000 7T
—7,500,001 /87T 2 8,000,000/ 7T
— 12,000,001 87T % 12,500,000 # 7T

2014 2013
—F-mE —F-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR
— !

— !

| —

| —_

| —

3 3
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31 December 2014
“E-AFF=A=1+—H
35. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 35, RETHELNRERE
2014 2013
“E-mE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TRT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENHESRE
Profit before tax BR B AT Al 929216 619,526
Adjustments for: RRE
Depreciation e 23,643 26,049
Share-based compensation expense PARR A7 A ZE 188 ) 5 B 7 63,737 29914
(Write-back of)/impairment charge on loans and EXREFBR(EE), HE
advances to customers 92 (14)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME « BE REMERER 8) =
Charge for impairment losses of accounts receivable ERRERERSR 2,750 222
Foreign exchange gain on held-to-maturity 2 5 B9 9% B S W
investments = (35)
1,019,430 675,662
Increase in other assets Hit & EEM (1,921) (360)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRNER
through profit or loss BEEM (369,372) (501,497)
Increase in loans and advances to customers ERREFEFEM (3,093,864) (2,947,276)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable FEURZRIE (12 00) /SR> (4,972) 24,084
Decrease in held-to-maturity investments REIBEERD — 77,555
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and BRTE - Re REME
other receivables WA (), H > (107,511) 1,560
Increase in client trust bank balances KPS RITAEME (1,043,068) (2,082,900)
Increase in accounts payable FERTFRIBIE M 884,088 2,164,562
Increase in other payables and accrued liabilities Hfth A FRIE K B 5t SR IAE N 57,636 44,007
Cash used in operations REXEHAR S (2,659,554) (2,544,603)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBENEH (93,624) (25,802)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RETHYRREMEFE (2,753,178)  (2,570,405)
Cash flows from operating activities included: REZBHNHEREEHE
— Interest received —EKFHE 766,873 417,197
— Interest paid —BRFE 91,228 22,624
— Dividend received —BKBRE 8,956 1,031
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36.

MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements

An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of the Group

analysed by the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date is as follows:

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

3. EEREENIEER
AEEETEAERABRRREHHLE
ZRAOIHANEKEENIBERLD
W

Upto | tolessthan 3 to less than  to Over

| month 3months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
-BAUT -ZE=ff =ZE+=f8f -E1Ff EFUL At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAn TARL TAR THR

As at 31 December 2014 R=2-ME+-A=+-H
Loans and advances to customers BERREPRN 8,516,345 = 582,819 = — 9,099,164
Accounts receivable el R 996,059 4757 287 — — 1,001,103

Financial assets at fair value BATE ABEN

through profit or loss TREE = 5,443 107,041 927,708 20,059 1,060,251
Client trust bank balances RPERRTER 8161599 848310 — — — 9009909
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 783,692 105,594 — — - 889,286
18,457,695 964,104 690,147 927,708 20,059 21,059,713
Accounts payable JEfI70R (10,004,468) — — — —  (10,004,468)
Bank borrowings RITER (3472,719) — — (990,000 —  (4462719)
Debt securities in issue BETEBES (87,323) (83,800) = = — (171,123
(13,564,510) (83,800) = (990,000) —  (14638310)

Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss in this maturity profile do not

include equity investments and fund investments.

HEMERRARAFEAG ABRSNERMEE
TABREBARE
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31 December 2014
—F-mEF=A=+-H
36. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 3. BEREENIHBERE)
Upto [tolessthan 3o lessthan [ to Over
| month 3months |2 months 5 years 5 years Total
—EANT —Z=f@A =ZEZ+=BA -E8F HEFHNE ECH)
HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TATL
As at 31 December 2013 R-E-=+-A=1-H
Loans and advances to customers ERREFBH 5,583,384 — 40008 — — 6005392
Accounts receivable FElsE 99842 22 248 — — 998,881
Financial assets at fair value BATEGABRN
through profit or loss TREE 28065 — 150959 592,668 — T
Client trust bank balances BPERRTHA 7,385,063 581,778 - - — 7966841
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 45525 30,070 — — — 485295
14450,158 612060 573215 592668 — 16228101
Accounts payable FERT5E (9,120,380) — — - —  (9120380)
Bank borrowings sHERITER (3386,113) — - - —  (3386,113)
Debt securtties in issue BETEBES — (59700)  (265,006) — —  (324706)
(12506493)  (59700)  (265006) - —  (12831,199)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in this maturity profile do not IR EE SRR AR A EF ABENS
include equity investments and fund investments. REEVIBRERARERESHE -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related

parties during the year.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-FEF-HA=1—H

3. BBMARS
@ BREBBRRFTHIINZS KA

BoN - ARERNFAEERTET
ATEARS °

Notes 2014 2013
M —B-mE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEX
Commission expenses to the ultimate X THRAZFRAFMNAELHEX
holding company (0) (2,802) (4,484)
Professional and consultancy fees paid X FRRNBARINEERFBHE
to a fellow subsidiary (i) (12,920) (13,125)
Management fee and performance fee BAARZEMBARIEER
income from a private fund managed ~ RIZMBARIRENLEES
by a wholly-owned subsidiary KRR ERBRARKREBRA
of the Company and invested
by a fellow subsidiary (iii) 4,160 —
Total fees received from a private fund FLEES WEMEEH (iv) 1,052 —
Commission income from a public fund BRI ZMBAREEMNAEES
managed by a fellow subsidiary WERE A2 KA ) 330 731
Commission income from the BRNERR AR B ERA
intermediate holding company (vi) 1,216 611
Commission income from the ultimate B & ER A AIUERE AR KA
holding company (i) 353 583
Commission income from the BEEERARKBRNABEKA
immediate holding company (viii) 235 —
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31 December 2014
e A e

37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

37. BBARSZ(E)

(continued) @ (&)
Notes 2014 2013
Pl £ —g-mE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Management fee income from a public BAARZEMBARIEER
fund managed by a wholly-owned ANERAARENAEES
subsidiary of the Company and KRR EEBRA
invested by the intermediate
holding company (ix) 10,622 6,110
Management fee income from public ~ BAARZEMBARIERER
funds managed by a wholly-owned R ERR AEHNAEEE KA
subsidiary of the Company and EREKRA
controlled by the intermediate
holding company X) 1,066 151
Management fee income from a public BARRZEMBARIERER
fund managed by a wholly-owned RZMBARIRENAEES
subsidiary of the Company and BEBEERBRA
invested by a fellow subsidiary (xi) 949 953
Commission income from the BREESHEHNASRA
investment fund (xii) 85 87
Underwriting fee income from BRNMERARIKBNEEERA
the intermediate holding company (xiii) 4,373 =
Professional fee and consultancy fee IHTHREERAENEERZHAE
paid to the ultimate holding company (xiv) (271) (39)
Fair value gain on disposal of HERERENSREERATEKS
financial assets held for trading (xv) 454 =
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated
based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the Cooperation

Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Professional and consultancy fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for the provision
of capital market information were charged at HK$12,920,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$13,125,000).

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by
a fellow subsidiary were charged at |.5% per annum of the net asset value at
the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive increment in the

net asset value for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (i) above
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction

value.

Commission income received from a public fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the intermediate holding company was
based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

37. BEARSZ(E)

@ (&)
Bz

0

(iii)

)

X FREERD RN AEH
XTEBARRRN —REEM
BRI A ERATIFAN
RAEBD LS

BE-T-—NFE+=-A=1—
BIEFERR RH B A AR 4
BEAMBGERNEERZLAE
T 5129200008 (=T —=
1 [3,125000/87T) °

BARRZEMBARERER
FAMERARRENLERES
WERH) B IR B WA R RIRER
ARBE_Z-—NE+_H
ST-RIEFEZAREK—
BITHERNBEEFESS 5%
VAR & FE B SR ANEE &Y 20% 18
o

B EGMALEES K
BMBERBERERSEN
025%FH ERIAEUA -

BRRAMBAREENAEE
LREBHABE WA ARAT]
—RK2ENBRRARILNEL
BEIANEEKRE

BN ERARMERA ALK
ATHEBRAR R R —F 2 AW
DRIFRR] VAL 1R T AL A
FEEURER -
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(viii)

(i)

(i)

Commission income received from the ultimate holding company was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

Commission income received from the immediate holding company was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

The management fee income received from the public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by the intermediate
holding company was charged based on percentage prescribed in the
investment management agreement for the years ended 3| December 2013
and 2014.

The management fee income received from three public funds (31 December
2013: two) managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by the intermediate holding company was based on a percentage
prescribed in the respective investment management agreements for the years
ended 3| December 2013 and 2014.

The management fee income received from a public fund managed by a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary
was based on percentage prescribed in the investment management

agreement for the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2014.

Commission income received from the investment fund mentioned in note (xi)
above was based on a percentage stated in the signed brokerage agreement

with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Underwriting fee income received from the intermediate holding company
was based on the fee stated in the signed underwriting agreement with a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvi)

(xviii)

(xix)

Professional fee and consultancy fee paid to the ultimate holding company
was based on the usage of research reports and financial advisory services
provided to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally

engaged in the provision of futures dealing and broking services.

Fair value gain on disposal of financial assets held for trading to the
intermediate holding company from a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$43,634,000 (2013: HK$12,238,000) arising
from the dealing in securities as at 31 December 2014. The balance is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant

market practices.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$42,059,000 (2013: HK$22,993,000)
arising from dealing in securities as at 3|1 December 2014. The credit terms
provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the practice
of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and

payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance fee
receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group mentioned
above of HK$4,251,000 (2013: HK$833,000) arising from the provision
of asset management services as at 3| December 2014. The balances are

unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in arrears.

Included in the Group's accounts payable are the accounts payable to the
certain investment funds mentioned in notes (iii), (v) and (xi) above arising
from dealing in securities in an aggregate amount of HK$6,133,000 as at 31
December 2014 (31 December 2013: HK$ 1 15,000).
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37. BEARSZ(E)
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(3]

B

(xvii)

(xvil)

(xix)

(%)

XN FREZERARNEER
AAE TR T ARA R —
FEIBNEFHERERRLE
BRZENBRARINAEERE
5 AR E A E KR
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37.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(xx)  Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from an intermediate
holding company which is HK$54,610,000 as at 3|1 December 2014 (31
December 2013: Nil).

The Group's ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is subject to the
control of the PRC Government which also controls a significant portion
of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned
enterprises”). Therefore, transactions with state-owned enterprises are

regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group were entered
into with state-owned banks. In addition, the Group enters into transactions
with state-owned enterprises that relates to the Group's normal business
activities, including but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, lending business and investment
holding. These transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of
business at an arm's length and under the normal commercial terms and
conditions as to those that would have been entered into with non-state-
owned enterprises, which were not considered as individually significant in

accordance with HKAS 24,

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (i), (v) to (viii), (x), (xiil),
(xiv) and (xv) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group

are disclosed in note 34.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable consequence of
being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise a potential adverse effect on the Group's

financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors
and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable
and up-to-date information. The Board of Directors provides written principles for
overall risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies

to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise cash and short term
deposits maintained as working capital as well as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and bank borrowings. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable as
well as accounts payable and debt securities in issue, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised

below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers, accounts
receivable from clients, brokers and dealers, corporate clients and investment funds,
debt securities, bank balances and client trust bank balances which are included in

the Group's asset portfolio.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor
the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia,
the Chief Executive Officer, Responsible Officers, the Chief Financial Officer and
the Head of Credit and Risk Management Department. The Credit Committee is
responsible for the development of financing business and approval of major credit

EXposure.

The Credit and Risk Management Department is responsible for approval,
monitoring and review of the Group's credit risk. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.
Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client's position. The
credit limit and margin limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities
acceptable as margin collateral prepared by the Credit and Risk Management

Department will be further approved by the Credit Committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of
credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by performing a detailed credit
analysis, and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the
performance. These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by the

Credit Committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within | week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within

a specific period of tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's ratings
or their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department for
managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group's own assessment

through the use of internal rating tools.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large commercial
banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts,
they are deposited in authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk

of bank balances and client trust bank balances are considered to be manageable.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising from
dealing in secunities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term
of | to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the settlement dates of the respective
securities transactions (normally from T+ to T+3 days). All applications for credit
limits must be reviewed by the Credit Manager and approved by any member of the
Credit Committee. However, no credit limit would be granted to new clients. The
Credit and Risk Management Department determines whether a forced liquidation
action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis.

The Credit Committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No transaction is allowed to be
executed if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The
margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each
futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely monitored by both
the dealers and the Credit and Risk Management Department. Margin calls will
be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures and leveraged foreign exchange
dealing and broking if there is a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation
of the customer's position will be executed if the customer fails to meet the margin

calls.

With the above stated controls, management is confident that the credit risk of the
Group resulting from securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and

broking as well as margin and other loan financing is manageable.

38.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-FEF-HA=1—H
cRREBEEE)
FERK(E)

ERRBRERHRERRF ()

AEBRTERDERBERIFHOAR
BERT - ABURFHEANRPE
RRITERME - ZSERNERER
MR SREE ROEBRIEPER
RITAHRNEERREIEERER

BUEPHERERRFELNRKE
PHE MRRUNEEHR-—RAE—Z
=R AEERTHEERRZERE
BARHGNEER(—RAT+H ET+3H
W) FAGERBENRFHALEEE
EEGRBEEREQEMKERE -
R HEPISERAEMEERE -
FEkEREEBFIEERE HBHE
BREEREFRIMAHERER - 58
ZEeTHRIBEG -

AEBHHERERIEER LELE
AXBEWANRES © HEPHAH
BHERRBRRHRE - BT FETE
AR5 - FIRANGREE REREER
RIRNERNAMERNRESBHEAR
HAREEREREEBFIINEGESR
MREE TR RSERNE TS
ERBERIERFRELELERBE
Ao REERRENRPBKER -

ELXMEERT  EEEREAKHE
HES  HENERIMNERE RLLIN
EARREMESBEMBRNEER
RERERHRZA -

W4EH BEEREBERERDLF

191



Notes to Financial Statements
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (the "HKMA") and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC"). The credit risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is

considered to be manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment holding is

manageable as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are sound.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses and other
assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have

minimal credit risk.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the
reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated
receipts for that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be
provided when clients fail to meet margin call requirements and clients” collateral

are insufficient to cover their outstanding loan balances.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties
fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the reporting period, in relation to
each class of financial assets, is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated in

the statement of financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2013 and 2014, without taking account of any collateral

held or other credit enhancements attached.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33 to the financial

statements.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@)  Bankbalances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong. As the Group's bank balances
and client trust bank balances are deposited with a number of financially
sound financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances is

insignificant.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to customers
(including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan financing) and accounts
receivable from clients are individuals who are mainly located in China. The
Credit and Risk Management Department daily prepares key margin client
and future and leveraged foreign exchange client exposure for review to
avoid excessive concentration risk. As the Group trades with a large number
of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration risk
of loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients is

manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses and

others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers and
dealers from its securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange broking
and dealing as well as other receivables from asset management, corporate
finance, fixed income business and investment holdings. Responsible Officers
timely monitor excess deposits placed with dealers and brokers to ensure

the concentration risk of accounts receivable is manageable.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Stock borrowing and lending

In the normal course of business, the Group may enter into stock borrowing and
lending arrangements with financial institutions and the Group's customers. As at
31 December 2014, the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$ 103,342,000
(2013: HK$123,780,000) from financial institutions and set aside equity securities
of HK$218,694,000 (2013: HK$97,285,000) pledged by margin clients, for stock
lending arrangements to customers. Cash collateral of HK$379,305,000 (2013:
HK$250,790,000) was received from the customers while HK$ 119,002,000 (201 3:
HK$132,314,000) was placed to the financial institutions.

The Group maintains no net position in such stock borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under the stock
borrowing and lending arrangement, the cash collateral received and cash collateral
placed are included in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers
and dealers respectively. The Group is principally liable to repay the borrowed

securities in case of any default by the customers.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group set aside exchange-traded funds of
HK$ 16,632,000 pledged by margin clients for its market making activities. As as 31
December 2013, the Group borrowed exchange-traded funds of HK$2,802,000
from a financial institution for the market making activities and placed HK$2,943,000

to the financial institution as cash collateral.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as

interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to interest rate
risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and

controlling the market risk arising from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, accounts payable to clients, bank
borrowings, debt securities in issue, client trust bank balances and cash and bank
balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they are managed

through the strategy of trading them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable rates exposed
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Debt investments held for trading are
expected to be traded within a short period of time and their interest rate risk
is considered to be minimal. Other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-
bearing or fixed interest-bearing with short term maturities within one year, of
which the interest rate risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates
its interest rate risk by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the
interest rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential
adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group
regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate shift on
its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable and interest-bearing bank

deposits.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by 1%, with
all other variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year ended 3|
December 2014 would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$143.6 million (2013: 107.5 million). The estimated 1% increase or decrease
represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest

rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments, fund
investments and debt investments held by the Group which are classified in the
statement of financial position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations,
whether such a change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual
instrument or factors affecting all instruments traded in the markets. The Group
mitigates its price risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investment
and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance

of investments.

At 31 December 2014, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by HK$9.6
million for the financial assets held for trading (2013: HK$15.9 million) should the
Hang Seng Index (the “HSI") increase/decrease by 10%. The analysis is based on
the assumption that all the equity instruments move according to the historical

correlation with the HSI and with all other variables held constant.

The debt investments held by the Group are not subject to significant price risk
exposure as they are managed for the market-making activities or holding for a

short period of time.

The asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral will deteriorate when the
market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress testing are regularly

performed on an individual client basis.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign currency
exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and its cash flows.
Management considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk as the majority of its operations and transactions are in Hong Kong and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. For leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the open position has been
adopted. In the opinion of the directors, the foreign exchange risk of the Group is

considered to be manageable.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business,
the Finance Department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available

committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure the

availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising
undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory requirements. This is
achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the individual companies within the
Group on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such as the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Group and Company's
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash flows, and
financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a complete

view of the Group and Company's contractual commitments and liquidity.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

38. CREREES)
RBESER(E)

R-Z-OE+=A=+-H

Group Z'K% &
3to
lto  lessthan
Upto lessthan 12 months [ to Over  Indefinite'
I month 3 months -z 5 years 5 years BT Total
—EAR —Z=BA +ZAR -E1F "FNUL R a5t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O0O  HK$000
TEr  Ter TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TERx
Assets EE
Loans and advances to customers B REPER 8516855 = 603,580 = = — 9120435
Accounts receivable EE 996,059 4757 287 — — — 1,001,103
Financial assets at fair value through ~ &AF{EZT AB &M
profit or loss EREE — — - - — 1353089 1353089
Client trust bank balances EPERRTER 8166026 851045 — — — — 901707
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEEN 783812 105875 — — — — 889687
18462752 961,677 603,867 = —  1,353089 21,381,385
Liabilities af
Accounts payable EfT5E (10004468) — — - — — (10004468
Bank borrowings T ERITER (3479,195) — —  (990000) — —  (4469,195)
Debt securities in issue BETEBES (87542) (83952 — — — — (171494
(13,571,205) (83952) —  (%90,000) = —  (14645,157)
Net on-balance sheet financial BEEEBRDH
position BB 4891547 871,725 603867 (990000) — 1353089 6736228
Off-balance sheet items EERERMER
Underwriting obligations ki 12320 — — — — — 12320
Financial obligations to loan facilties  EFEIEHHEE 763041 = = — — — 763041
Capital commitments EXRE 6,681 — — = 6,681
782,042 = = = = = 782,042
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 3| December 2014 (continued)

38. CREREES)
RBEEER(E)

R-Z2-EOFE+=A=+-R(&)

Group (continued) REB(E)
3to
It less than
Upto lessthan 12 months [ to Over  Indefinite'
I month 3 months -z 5 years 5 years BT Total
—fAAm —Z=@A +=fEA -EFLF §FEHUL fRE )
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O0O  HK$000
TAT TEr TEr  TEr  TER  TEx  TEn
Derivative cash flow TERER
Derivative financial instruments RABESH
settled on a gross basis fTEeMIA
Total outflow @it = 7,734 14090 557,585 — — 579,409
Total inflow &R i (7,734)  (14,090) (557,585) = —  (579,409)
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

8. CREREES)
REBELEM(Z)

RZB-NE+=A=+-H(#&)

Company b /NG|
3to
[to less than
Upto  lessthan |2 months I to Over  Indefinite'
[ month 3 months =z 5 years 5 years BRE Total
—-fAn —-Z=@R +=fAR -E&F HEHUL R @t
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAr TEr TEx FEx Tz TEr  TER
Assets EE
Due from a subsidiary JEleft B A RIFE 2618447 - — — — — 2618447
Cash and cash equivalents RERGESEN 40498 - — — — — 40498
2,658,945 = = = = — 2,658,945
Liabilities af
Debt securities in issue BETREESR (87542) (83952 - - — —  (1714%)
Net on-balance sheet financial ~ EEBERS
position WETHE MR 2571403 (83952) - - — — 2487451
Off-balance sheet items EESERMER
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries [ F1 B 2 RIfE H MBI A B (R 5,448.442 = = = = — 5448442

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt

investments held for trading.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SRARER#)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRER(E)

As at 3| December 2013 R-—ZE-—=F+-F=+—H

Group KEH
3to
| to less than
Upto lessthan 12 months [ to Over  Indefinite'
I month 3 months =z 5 years 5 years BT Total
—EAR —Z=@A TZAR -E1F "FHUL R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thr TEx  THEr  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx
Assets BE
Loans and advances to customers B R R HH 5,583,384 = 448,129 = = — 6031513
Accounts receivable IR 998421 212 248 = = = 998,881
Financial assets at fair value through &2 BT ABzH
profit or loss EREE = = — — — 93717 983717
Client trust bank balances RPERRTER 7389970 583437 — — — — 7973407
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEN 455,354 30,161 — - — — 485515
14427129 613810 448377 — 97T 16473033
Liabilities af
Accounts payable TR (9,120380) — - - — — (9,120380)
Other payable Hi 3R (583) — — — — — (583)
Bank borrowings T ERITER (3386,830) — — — — —  (3386830)
Debt securities in issue BETEHES (899)  (60339)  (266:86) - — — (38101
(12508692)  (60339)  (266,863) — — —  (12835894)
Net on-balance sheet financial BEBERTHN
position BB 1918437 55347 181514 — — 97T 3637139
Off-balance sheet items EESERIMER
Underwriting obligations B 3 G 256,759 — - - — — 6759
Financial obligations to loan facilties & X E4 & MR 176,354 — — — — — 176354
Capital commitments EXRE 533 — — — = = 533
433646 = = = = 433,646
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

8. CREREES)
REBELEM(Z)

RZB-=ZF+ZA=+-H(#&)

Company b /NG|
3to
It less than
Upto lessthan 12 months [ to Over  Indefinite'
I month 3 months -z 5 years 5 years BT Total
—fEAR —2=@A +ZAA -E1F "FNL RE @5t
HK$000  HKF000  HKFO00  HK$000  HKPOOO  HKF000  HKFO00
TAT TEr TEr  TEr  TER  TEx  TEn
Assets EE
Due from a subsidiary JEleft B A RIFE 2132863 — — — — — 2132863
Cash and cash equivalents RERGESEN 1205 — — — — — 1205
2,134,068 = = = = — 2134068
Liabilities af
Debt securities in issue BETREESR (899)  (60339)  (266:86) - — — (38101
Net on-balance sheet financial ~ EEBERS
position WETBAR R 2,133,169 (60339)  (266863) = = —  1,805967
Off-balance sheet items EESERMER
Financial guarantees to subsidiaries [ F1 B 2 RIfE H MBI A B (R 2979036 = = — — — 2979036

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date and debt

investments held for trading.

ERTRAEESHIHANRER
BRBIEEENETRE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different from their

carrying amount due to their short term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Group's valuation process

The Level | and Level 2 fair value of financial assets are measured by reference to
quoted market prices and brokers quotes, respectively. The Group has engaged
an independent professionally qualified valuer, International Valuation Limited, to
perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting
purposes. These valuation reports are sent to the Accounting Department and the
Audit Committee for discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the

Group's reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the Accounting Department reviews all significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to measure the fair value of
financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in fair values of Levels 2 and 3 financial

assets are analysed at each reporting date.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

38.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2014

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

SREREE )
SHAERAMNATES)
BATEHENEHTAE)
AFESH

TREPAEESRIANLTEANE

Z4 -
BATENROEE
HN=g-mE+=A=+-8

Fair value measurement using

RANTRENAVENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB EATE  EAER
TERE 228 HBRE2¥
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B 14) (824%) (%838) Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TERr TERr TERr
Financial assets held for trading HIEEERREE
— Listed equity investments — EmRARE 240,395 = 240,395
— Listed debt investments — LTEBEE — 774,949 — 774,949
— Unlisted debt investments —FEMEHRE — 41,285 86,826 128,111
Financial assets designated as at fairvalue 3§ R A FEFT ABRH
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted fund investments —FLMEERE — 52,443 — 52,443
— Unlisted convertible promissory note ~ — 3£ E T AJ R E & = = 157,191 157,191
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMIEA — 1,766 — 1,766
240,395 870,443 244,017 1,354,855
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 3| December 2013

38.

EREREEZ)
SREEREBHATEE)
EAFEGTENSHIAE)
EERE)
BRATEAENEE : (£)
R-B-—=F+-A=1+—H

I
-+

Fair value measurement using

RANTRBENDFHEAE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
mE BAUE  EABE
M5 HR{E R28  HEZY
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1&) (FE28)  (FB38®) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET THET
Financial assets held for trading HIEEERREE
— Listed equity investments — EmRARE 212,025 = = 212,025
— Listed debt investments — L HEBRE — 420658 — 420,658
— Unlisted debt investments —FFEMEHRE — 133262 94,197 207459
Financial assets designated as at fairvalue 3§ € R A FEFT ABRH
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted convertible promissory note  — 3E_E M ATHUR E 15 — — 123,575 123,575
212,025 553920 217772 983,717
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PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SRAKERE)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) LRHEEREBNATLEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFEAENEHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) BATEAENEEE)
Liabilities measured at fair value: BATEFENEE :
As at 31 December 2014 R-B-MNE+-A=+—H
Fair value measurement using
BRAUTRENATEE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ER OBEAWUE  EAEE
hIHRE 22y HEZY
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B14R) (%24%) (%34) st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR TER T

Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA = (1,766) — (1,766)
The Group did not hold any material derivative financial instruments as at 31 NEFBR-_Z—=F+_F=+—H¥
December 2013. ERAEMITESRIA
(@)  Financial instruments in Level | @@ HIREHIA
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based R ERMAEEEMEMT AR
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market is TEBEREHROTIHRET
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from o SR ERNTIRIETES LT
an exchange, dealer, broker and those prices represent actual and regularly HURZZ  RP5 - BLIER
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market BHMS  MEZEREBERRELT
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. EEBTHNERESEMER S ©
AREFEEREEMBNTSR

W4EH BREREBZERERAA 207



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

()

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments are

observable, the financial instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the financial instrument is included in Level 3.

The Group acquired approximately 8.6 million non-voting convertible
preference shares (the “Convertible Preference Shares”) of a Company
(the “Investee) whose ordinary shares were listed on the Stock Exchange
in July 2013 at a consideration of HK$70.5 million. The Convertible
Preference Shares are not entitled to dividend or interest income, but can
be convertible into ordinary shares of the Investee from 4 May 2014 to
3 May 2019 and will automatically be converted into ordinary shares of
the Investee on 4 May 2019. The fair value of the Convertible Preference
Shares was HK$133.3 million as at 31 December 2013. In May 2014, the
Convertible Preference Shares have been converted into ordinary shares
of the Investee listed on the Stock Exchange and the fair value of the listed

equity investment was HK$120.4 million as at 31 December 2014.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
—E-mE+=f=1—A
38.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SRAKERE)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) LRHEEREBNATLEE)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BRFESEN 2R TAE)
(b)  Financial instruments in Level 2 (continued) (b) TLREMIAE)
Except the conversion of the Convertible Preference Shares (level 2) into FRAEARER(E 2R)ERAR
ordinary shares of the Investee listed on the Stock Exchange (level ), there AT ER R E AR T ER
was no transfer of fair value measurement between Level | and Level 2 for (BI)IN BEZE—ZFR=
the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2014. T-NE+ZA=T—BHLFE
MERATEFENS  REFLR
2 el -
() Financial instruments in Level 3 (0 H3RERMIA
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments of financial TRENBE-E—=ZFEK_F
instruments for the years ended 3| December 2013 and 2014. —ME+—A=+—HIFE " £

IREMIANES -
For the year ended 3| December 2014 E e mEd AL
FE

Unlisted
Convertible

Unlisted debt Promissory

Investments Note

(Note) (Note 19)

FEm FEW
BB¥RE FTHRREE Total
(F&E) (BaE19) Azt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TERT TET

At | January 2014 R-ZZ-—MF—-H—A 94,197 123,575 217,772
Accrued interest income FEETHI S U A 3,321 2,985 6,306
Receipt of interest income WERF B A (3,103) (2,985) (6,088)
Net (loss)/gain recognised in RIEZE AR

profit or loss (B#8),/ a5 (7,589) 33,616 26,027
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+—H 86,826 157,191 244,017
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SRARER#)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) tREEREBNATEE)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BRFEAENSHTAE)

() Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) () BIREMIAE)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_E—=F+-F=+—HIF

£

Unlisted

Convertible

Unlisted debt Promissory

Investments Note

(Note) (Note 19)

LM FLEm
EBRE ARREE Total
(F&E) (HEE19) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TRT
At | January 2013 RZZ—=%—HF—H — 118,244 118,244
Purchases BE 78,500 = 78,500
Accrued interest income FERTFISIA 665 2985 3,650
Receipt of interest income U ER R B U A — (2.950) (2,950)
Net gain recognised in profit or loss A8z MR AU & 7 58 16,032 5296 21,328
Transfer out to Level | BREE IR (1,000) — (1,000)
At 31 December 2013 R_F—=f+_A=1—H 94,197 123,575 217,772
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(Note)

In July 2013, the Group subscribed a three-year convertible bond issued by the Investee, at a
consideration of HK$45.5 million. The principal amount of the convertible bond was HK$45.5
million and it bears an interest rate of 1% per annum. An amount of HK$| million was
converted into listed equity investments during the year ended 31 December 2013. The fair
value of the convertible bond was HK$54.7 million as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$57.4

million).

The Group has also entered into a sale and purchase agreement dated 4 November
2013 with its fellow subsidiary, under which the Group purchased a two-year convertible
bond issued by a company, whose ordinary shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, at a
consideration of HK$33.0 million. The principal amount of the convertible bond was HK$32.0
million and bears interest at 9% per annum. The fair value of the convertible bond was
HK$32.1 milllion as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$36.8 million).

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

SHEREER@)
TREERAENATEE)

RAFEGENZHBIAGE)

(Ff5E)

RZZB—=FtH AEERBERHRE
RAElIFMBITH=F B RRES  KEA
455 F BB - AIMREFNAE /4558
BEAL FREAIE - RBE-T—=F
TZA=T—BLEFER - |IBEBTEE
BAETRARE - TRREFNATER
—E-NE+-A=t—HAMTEEBT
(ZZ—=F:574885TT) °

o

AEBNERRAZMBRARIAHAE-T
—=F+-—ANBANEE R Bt &%
EREER—RLBERERRAT LM AR
BIIMMERRRES  REA3BIEE
BT e TEREFMAS AROEEET
FRRAEIE - IBRBEFNAFER-Z
—E+-—A=+—HARIBEET(Z
T—=F :368@BBT)

W4 EH BREREBEZERERAA 211



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
“E-AFF=A=1+—H
38.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. SREREE#)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) CRHEEREBNATESR)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BRFEAENSHTAE)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial TYAERmIAN-_ZE—=4FK_F
instruments as at 3| December 2013 and 2014: —ME+-A=T—HHENERNEE
BR2HNE
31 December 2014
“E2-NE+=A=t-H
Valuation
technique Significant unobservable input Averagelrange  Sensitivity of the input to fair value
fEERM EXBLBRSY T,/ 68 SEHATENBRE
Unlisted debt investments Binomial pricing ~ Credit spread above 5.6% - 14.4% 2% increase or decrease in the credit
model risk free rate spread above the risk-free rate, the fair
value would be decreased by HK$1.2
million or increased by HK$1.2 million,
respectively.
FETEBRE “EATERY SRERRNENEESE 5.6% - 144% =RERBIENEERSERMARD
2 RFEBDHRD 12ABBTH
BMI2BEEET
Unlisted Convertible Binomial pricing ~ Pricing multiples of market 10% increase or decrease in the underlying
Promissory Note model comparable companies used to stock price, the fair value would be increased
determine the estimated equity by HK$1 1.7 million or decreased by HKS$! 1.7
value of the Project Company: million, respectively.
— Price to revenue muttiple 1.6
— Price to book multiple 23
— Price to eamings multiple 152
FLETAARER “EAREREE RARETER QA REER HERRER LA RRE 0% ATE
ENTSELRAFNEE BAREMII7TEEETIRD 178
fE8L BT
—hER 16
— k= 23
—MaX 152
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

3| December 2013

Significant unobservable input

EABERESH

Notes to Financial Statements

38.

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

SHEREER@)

SREERABNATYES)

RAFEGENZHBIAGE)

Average/range

19,/ 8

Sensitivity of the input to fair value

SEHLTENHRE

Unlisted debt investments

FEMEKRE

Unlisted Convertible

Promissory Note

FEMABRRRR

Valuation
technique
EERH
Binomial pricing
model
“EAEERY

Binomial pricing

model

“EAEERY

Credit spread above risk free rate

ERERRNENEESE

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used to
determine the estimated equity
value of the Project Company:

— Price to revenue muttiple

— Price to book multiple

— Price to eamings muttiple
ARETERE RAhaRER
ENTHAELRARNEE
fEE

\

=t =t

e ]S
B¢ B¢ Be

[
=l
Bal S

79% - 14.6%

79% - 14.6%

1.6
2|
220

1.6
2|
220

2% increase or decrease in the credit
spread above the risk-free rate, the fair
value would be decreased by HK$1.6

million or increased by HK$1.7 million,

respectively.
RRERBRAXNEREREEMARB D

2% AFEFARRD 16 ABATR
01 T EEAT -

[0% increase or decrease in the pricing
multiples, the fair value would be increased
by HK$7.8 million or decreased by HK$7.8

million, respectively.

EEBHLEARBEEI0% ATEES
RIEM78EEAETIRPI8AE S
ﬁ:o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader concept

than the “equity” on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

S To comply with the capital requirements under the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries which are licensed

corporations;

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders;
. To support the Group's stability and growth; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary's
management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules. The
required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each
licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is the higher
of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of
the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients” margin. All licensed corporations
within the Group complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2014.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.
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39.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the Continuous Net

Notes to Financial Statements

39.

Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and trade payables with HKSCC

and it intends to settle on a net basis as accounts receivable from or accounts

payable to the Stock Exchange. For the net amount of CNS money obligations

receivable or payable with HKSCC and guarantee fund placed in HKSCC, they do

not meet the criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does

not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

Gross amount

PR R I EE

31 December 2014
ZEF-mEFZA=+—H

EHCREERSRAE
AEBRABEARETNITRNEHE
EEAENRBEFIERR(BEFER
WO RBERER 5 ENFUR - WHEIFR
HEEDBRNLENBRARREE -
HEBEENREFRRIMNELRLE
NERMFERERNBEEENREE
X FHERHBRRAEHEOFE
AEEMRFREREE ARG

of recognised
financial ~ Net Amount
(assets)/ of financial Related
Gross amount liabilities liabilities ~ amounts not
of recognized offset in reflected in set off in the
financial assets/ the financial the financial statement of
(liabilities) statements statements  financial position
BER  EHCER  RUBERR  HARRE
EREE SR(EE) 2IINER MRRREHD Net
/(BE)EE /AfLE EERE EBER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR Tén THER Thn THER
As at 3| December 2014 R-2-BE+ZA=1-H
CNS money obligation receivable  $5 & F RN E B 1,462,105 (1,462,105) — — —
CNS money obligation payable HEFEMERE (1,679,114) 1,462,105 (217,009) - (217,009)

W4 EH BREREBEERERAA 215



Notes to Financial Statements

B R R R I =R

31 December 2014
e A e

39. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(continued)

39.

Gross amount

EHEHEERSRARD)

of recognised
financial Net Amount

(assets)/ of financial Related

Gross amount liabilties liabilities amounts not

of recognized offset in reflected in set off in the

financial assets/ the financial the financial statement of

(liabilties) statements statements ~ financial position

BHR  HHEER  RUBEHRR  AAREE
eREE eR(BE) ZIMeR MRREHD Net
/(afR)ER /afEgR BERE o) kA #8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TAT TR TR TAT

As at 3| December 2013 RZBE-=%+ZA=1-H

CNS money obligation receivable & F R EWER 641967 (641967) - —
CNS money obligation payable BEFEINEMNE (703242) 641967 (61,275) (61,275)

The "net amounts of financial assets reflected in the financial statements”, as set out

above, is included in “accounts payable arising from dealing and broking — the Stock

Exchange and other clearing houses” in note 23.
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